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1

P R O C E E D I N G S

2

MR. GELLER:

Good evening.

My name is

3

Jesse Geller.

Before we begin, I will confirm

4

that all members and other persons anticipated

5

to participate on the agenda are present and can

6

hear me.

7

respond in the affirmative.

Members, when I call your name, please

8

MS. SCHNEIDER:

9

MR. GELLER:

10

see you, Randolph.

11

Poverman.

Johanna Schneider.
Present.

Randolph Meiklejohn.

Thank you for waving.

12

MS. POVERMAN:

13

MR. GELLER:

Staff, when I call your

name, please respond in the affirmative.

15

Morelli.
MS. MORELLI:

17

MR. GELLER:

18

20

MS. MORELLI:
attendance.

21

Maria

I'm here.
Do we have anybody else

from staff -- oh, we don't.

19

Kate

Present.

14

16

Just you, Maria?

Alison Steinfeld is in

She's just not a panelist.
MR. GELLER:

She's in hiding, okay.

22

understand that it is possible that later, our

23

40B consultant will also participate, and we

24

will announce that at the time that -- if and
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1

when she does call in.

2

MS. MORELLI:

3

MR. GELLER:

Correct.
Great.

Thank you.

All

4

speakers should identify themselves by name

5

prior to speaking.

6

open session is being conducted remotely, and in

7

a manner that is consistent with Governor

8

Baker's March 12, 2020 executive order

9

concerning the current state of emergency in the

10

Commonwealth due to the outbreak of the COVID-19

11

virus.

12

This hearing of the ZBA in

In order to mitigate the transmission

13

of COVID-19, we have been advised to practice

14

physical distancing, and the requirement of the

15

open meeting law that public bodies such as this

16

conduct their hearings in a publicly accessible

17

physical location has been suspended.

18

The governor's order, which is posted

19

with agenda materials for this hearing,

20

authorizes this body to meet entirely remotely

21

so long as adequate public access is provided.

22

Adequate public access does not include public

23

participation, unless such participation is

24

required by law.
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This hearing will feature public

2

comment.

For this hearing, the ZBA is convening

3

by video conference via Zoom, as posted on the

4

town's calendar, which identifies how the public

5

may access the hearing.

6

hearing is and that some attendees may be

7

participating by video conference.

8

please be aware that others may be able to see

9

you, and take care not to screen share your

Be advised that this

10

computer.

11

captured by the recording.

12

Accordingly,

Anything that you broadcast may be

All supporting materials that have

13

been provided to members of this body are

14

available on the town website and attached to

15

this hearing invitation.

16

follow the agenda, unless I note otherwise.

17

Finally, before turning to the agenda, I will

18

cover some ground rules that will permit clear

19

and effective conduct of our business and help

20

to ensure accurate hearing minutes.

21

The hearing will

I'll introduce each speaker on the

22

agenda.

23

invite each member, by name, to provide any

24

comment, questions, or motions.
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1

yours until your name is called.

2

remember to mute your phone or computer when you

3

are not speaking and to speak clearly and in a

4

way that helps generate accurate minutes.

5

Please also

Before responding, please wait until

6

the floor is yielded to you, and state your name

7

before speaking.

8

sidebar comment with other members, please do so

9

through me.

10

If members wish to engage in

Finally, each vote taken in this

hearing will be conducted by roll call vote.

11

For the public comment component of

12

this hearing, I will first ask members of the

13

public who wish to speak to identify themselves

14

by name and address only.

15

name.

16

section.

17

bottom of your screen.

18

the chat window will appear on the right.

19

I'll call on each by

Please enter your names into the chat
You can find the chat icon on the
Click on this icon, and

Our host, Maria, will cue members in

20

the order in which they are identified.

21

Additionally, we will ask if members of the

22

public who are calling in would like to speak in

23

favor of or in opposition to the project.

24

So tonight's hearing is a continuation
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from our last hearing, which was on November 4,

2

2020, and people who were at that or

3

participated in that hearing will remember at

4

that point, the applicant presented their

5

revised proposal.

6

testimony from the public, and the board then

7

deliberated and gave a further charge to the

8

developer.

9

Boehmer, our design review consultant, peer

There was an opportunity for

I believe also at that hearing Cliff

10

reviewer, also presented information for the

11

board to consider.

12

Tonight's hearing will largely be

13

dedicated to reviewing what the developer has

14

done with the board's charge and to go over any

15

revisions to the project.

16

there has been an agreement on an extension of

17

the deadline for this hearing matter.

18

I understand that

I just want to note for the public

19

that because this is a 40B case, it is subject to

20

strict legal time periods, 180 days, barring an

21

agreement with the applicant for an extension,

22

and the applicant has agreed to an extension.

23

understand that extension currently is through

24

April 7.
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2

MS. MORELLI:

Yes, it is, April 7,

2021.

3

MR. GELLER:

The first item on our

4

agenda, Maria earlier circulated a set of

5

minutes, which, as she notes, no kidding,

6

January 16, 2020, which is a long time ago, and

7

feels like a long time ago.

8

the panel have a copy of these minutes?

9

everybody had an opportunity to review them?

10

MS. MORELLI:

11

MR. GELLER:

Does everybody on
Has

Yes.
Randolph has his thumbs

12

up, Johanna says yes, and Kate is not talking.

13

Any comments?

14

MS. SCHNEIDER:

15

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

16

MR. GELLER:

17

you, Randolph.

18

anything?

No comments.

No comments.

I heard

I don't have any comments.

19

MS. POVERMAN:

20

MR. GELLER:

21

No comments.

Kate,

No.
Thank you.

Maria, do you

need anything else with the minutes?

22

MS. MARIA:

No.

Just this is an

23

approval, so that's -- voted it to be approved.

24

Thank you.
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MR. GELLER:

Secondly, Maria, I want

2

to invite you to provide us with an update on

3

what has been happening in the interim period.

4

And just as a reminder to people who are viewing

5

this, what winds up happening is for efficiency

6

sake, between the hearings, there may or may not

7

be, but I understand there have been, meetings

8

between staff and the developer, as well as with

9

input from the board's peer reviewer, to review

10

and go over changes to the project consistent

11

with the board's charge.

12

that your report is likely going to be dedicated

13

to that.

14

MS. MORELLI:

So Maria, I suspect

Yes.

I actually just

15

want to cover three things.

16

since the last hearing, and I thought it would be

17

helpful if I went through the ZBA's charge, and

18

then I will go into what was covered in the

19

working groups, and then where we stand with the

20

town departments' reviews.

21

indulge me just a few minutes while I go through

22

what was the ZBA's charge.

23
24

It's been a while

So if you'll just

So overall, the feeling was that it
lacked sufficient mitigation to justify the
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height.

Mr. Geller said that he can't support --

2

the site can't support a six-story, too shallow.

3

However, Ms. Schneider and Mr. Meiklejohn were

4

not convinced by the massing proposed.

5

felt, or at least three ZBA members felt, that

6

the building needed to be moved back from

7

Harvard.

8

much agree that the relationship to Kenwood, the

9

two-and-a-half-story neighborhood [sic], was

Ms. Poverman differed.

All

All pretty

10

insufficient and overall that it needed to look

11

more residential.

12

In regard to the Kenwood massing and

13

view of sky, the relationship to Kenwood

14

residential district is unfinished business.

15

The balconies on the Kenwood seem to be skin deep

16

in terms of articulation.

17

was an objective picture of the two-and-a-half

18

-- of a two-and-a-half-story building next to

19

the six-story building needed more articulation

20

at the fifth and sixth floors on the west facade.

21

In regard to the Harvard Street street

The street section

22

wall massing and front yard setback, the

23

overhang arcade treatment was considered not --

24

was not considered an adequate response to the
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ZBA's initial charge for a front yard setback of

2

ten feet.

3

over the front yard setback.

4

board had in mind when it said to align with 514

5

Harvard.

6

Floors 2 through 5 seemed to heave
It wasn't what the

The arcade treatment is not a Harvard

7

thing -- Harvard Street thing.

It's considered

8

street decoration.

9

needs to look at the pedestrian experience.

We need -- the applicant
The

10

planters, columns, and stairs take up front yard

11

space.

12

What was considered a success was the

13

breaking up of the massing at the northeast

14

corner close to the 514 Harvard.

15

considered a success.

16

architectural style seemed institutional.

17

gray looked like steel and not residential, and

18

the faux wood was undesirable.

19

That was

Overall, the
The

So regarding the working groups, we

20

had three working groups:

21

January 26, 2021; and February 5, 2021.

22

January hearing that was scheduled was continued

23

because there were no working groups in

24

December.
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In regard to the November 10 working

2

group, we talked about meaningful stepback above

3

four stories to speak to the pedestrian

4

experience.

5

theme with the Harvard Street 40Bs, as well as

6

the 40Bs we've looked at, in general, even on

7

Beacon Street, what is the pedestrian

8

experience, what happens at four stories.

9

This has actually been kind of a

It was discussed in the November 10

10

working group that the ten-foot front yard

11

setback was hard to justify when one looks at the

12

development pattern, especially the multi-family

13

on Harvard Street.

14

by the peer reviewer that there are no six-story

15

multi-families on -- fronting Harvard Street

16

with a zero-foot setback.

17

height ratio, if there was going to be a zero- to

18

five-foot front yard setback, it was expected

19

that the massing would be carved out somewhere

20

to compensate for that.

21

However, it was pointed out

So the setback to

We discussed a more -- like an

22

architectural language that speaks -- that was

23

more contextual, and a base were something that

24

we observed in this -- in our view of the
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development pattern on Harvard Street.

These

2

were a way to tie in with the development pattern

3

on Harvard Street, but we suggested different

4

ideas that the heights on the base could be

5

different heights, different -- could be three

6

to five stories just to introduce or build upon

7

that successful carving out of a balcony that

8

was used on the northeast corner.

9

that design is an iterative process.

We also said
So we did

10

expect that there might be some back and forth

11

with the ZBA.

12

What else did we talk about.

So in

13

between -- there were no revisions submitted in

14

December, so I did reach out to Attorney

15

Jennifer Dopazo-Gilbert, and on January 22, she

16

told me that the applicant felt he had met his

17

limit in terms of reducing either volume or

18

square footage.

19

So we had a working group meeting on

20

January 26, and the style, what you see tonight,

21

was very close to what we had observed, and it

22

was felt that the -- it looked more residential.

23

The use of base, especially on Harvard Street,

24

seemed to be much more residential, much more
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contextual.

2

much more residential element on the Kenwood

3

side.

4

We had talked about introducing a

What we didn't see was a lot of

5

articulation on the west facade.

So one thing

6

that we're looking at -- in working groups,

7

we're trying to look at different permutations,

8

different combinations of articulation on all

9

sides of the building, and we're trying to use

10

the street site section as a way to evaluate

11

mitigation, how well that -- the mitigation of

12

the impact has been, how effective it's been.

13

It was felt at the January 26 working

14

group that still more work needed to be done on

15

the fifth and sixth floors, and so what came back

16

at the February 5 working group meeting was the

17

bay was introduced on the west facade, on the

18

southwest side.

19

create a four-story grade (?).

20

didn't really read as a four-story volume, you

21

know, so that we just felt that there wasn't

22

enough articulation at the fourth story level.

23

In that working group, we looked at

24

So there was an attempt to
However, it

setting it back two feet to see if that -- that
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was a suggestion that came from Mr. Boehmer.

2

was pretty clear, though, that the applicant had

3

met his limit in terms of further reductions in

4

terms of volume.

5

-- if the architect would just indulge us by just

6

showing -- in realtime working in his sketch-up

7

model different chunks on the west facade

8

removed.

9

It

So I did ask if the developer

So different combinations were two

10

units on the sixth floor on the west facade, one

11

unit on that southwest corner on the fifth and

12

the sixth floors, two units on both the fifth and

13

sixth floors.

14

looked really awkward.

15

evaluate stepbacks, and the proportions really

16

did look awkward.

17

I must say that the proportions
We were trying to

Granted, this was really not a real

18

exercise because the developer wasn't willing to

19

remove that amount of square footage.

20

wanted to ask the questions.

21

if the applicant would be willing to remove a

22

fifth floor just in case that proportion looked

23

better, and he said no, that he would not be --

24

he was not able to do that.
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So where we are now, the plan that is

2

-- that will be presented tonight it seems to us

3

-- to the peer reviewer and to me that in meeting

4

the ZBA charge, more work does need to be done.

5

We'd like to be able to work more with the

6

applicant to achieve -- to meet the ZBA's

7

charge, but we do feel that the applicant has met

8

his limit.

9

So that's that.
In regard to the town departments'

10

reviews, the storm water management plan and the

11

civil drawings were submitted.

12

and submitted a memo with things that they

13

wanted to see on the plans and some things they

14

had flagged.

15

from the applicant's engineer, and we currently

16

are having DPW review that right now.

17

DPW did review

We got a very detailed response

Right now, I can't say I've flagged

18

anything that's a safety issue, but I do feel

19

that some things DPW will need to review to see

20

if they want to defer those issues to

21

conditions, or if they would rather have that

22

cleared up in the hearing.

23

have this extension so we can have DPW weigh in

24

further on that.
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The fire department also has to look

2

at those plans.

3

engineering division look at is the site

4

distance at the driveway.

5

Article 6 of the zoning.

6

4(f)1 regarding visibility of drivers at the

7

drive -- exiting the garage and their visibility

8

of pedestrians on either side of the sidewalk.

9

So engineering is reviewing a site plan.

10

One thing that we are having the

There is a section in
It's 604 Subparagraph

The trash plan has been prepared and

11

is with the health department, and we have yet to

12

discuss a foundation method with the applicant.

13

So at that point, I would turn it over to the

14

applicant to present their drawings.

15

MR. GELLER:

Hang on, Maria.

Let me

16

make sure there are no questions, and I have a

17

few, but let me see if anybody else on the panel

18

has a question.

19

Johanna, no.

MS. POVERMAN:

Kate?

I'm sure we'll get to

20

it, but I'd like an explanation of the reason for

21

the applicant saying it is not able to remove a

22

floor.

23
24

We'll get to that, I'm sure.
MR. GELLER:

Well, let's look at

questions for Maria at this point.
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MS. POVERMAN:

2

MR. GELLER:

3

No questions.
Randolph, do you have any

questions for Maria?

4

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

5

MR. GELLER:

I do not.

Great.

Maria, I have a

6

couple of questions for you.

7

course of your discussions about removal of

8

sixth floor portions, the fifth floor and any

9

other reductions, was it simply discussion, or

10

Did you -- in the

did you see mock-ups of what it would look like?

11

MS. MORELLI:

We actually were working

12

with a sketch-up model in realtime.

13

Harding, the architect, would take out a unit,

14

you know, in realtime.

15

-- you know, they weren't submitted drawings

16

where the architecture team was working on

17

those, you know, different iterations and then

18

sending them back.

19

different wire frames and evaluating them.

20

were just looking at taking out a chunk and

21

seeing what that massing looked like.

22

So Mr.

So we were able to look

So we weren't looking at like

MR. GELLER:

So there was a visual

23

representation of what it was you were

24

proposing?
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2

MS. MORELLI:

In realtime, right.

It

wasn't --

3

MR. GELLER:

In realtime, okay.

Do we

4

have an analysis in the form of an overlay with

5

delineation of original project, next response

6

to charge, and then secondary response to

7

charge, where we are today?

8
9

MS. MORELLI:

So I did ask the

applicant and the architect to provide for your

10

benefit a comparison of the massing, how the

11

volumes changed from initial, to November 4, to

12

this evening.

13

seen that.

14

So I did ask for that.

MR. GELLER:

I have not

Did you specifically ask

15

-- I heard you in your repeating of the board's

16

charge comment about the arcade.

17

alternative possibilities for the arcade?

18

MS. MORELLI:

Did you look at

So I want to make it

19

clear that what we saw -- what the -- the plans

20

that were submitted -- can I just go back to --

21

Mr. Boehmer and I, we were always comparing

22

initial proposal and November 4.

23

to look at that, and the way we evaluated it were

24

through the street sections that were provided,
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and that's how we evaluated how the volume

2

changed.

3

I asked the architect to provide kind

4

of like a dotted line of original to see how the

5

volume changed.

6

represented for the ZBA's benefit.

7

you to know that we did evaluate volume changes

8

in the working groups.

9

That is something that I wanted
But I do want

In regard to the arcade, we bounced

10

around a lot of ideas.

11

like over the course of the public hearing,

12

different things that we talked about were no

13

parking at all.

14

needs to be parking, and it actually, I think,

15

might have increased the parking by one spot.

16

So I just want to say

The developer is firm that there

We talked about parking with

17

residential on the ground floor.

18

the initial proposal had retail in that space.

19

It was discussed if the retail space were, you

20

know, eliminated, that could be a way to carve

21

out volume somewhere else.

22

eliminated, and that is -- that's the

23

applicant's decision that space isn't being

24

taken up, you know, with a unit, a residential
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unit.

2

Number one, it's not desirable for the

3

applicant to have a residential unit on the

4

ground floor, and there's also a slope issue.

5

I'm not saying it's not feasible, it's just -- it

6

would be a work effort.

7

expensive to have -- to adjust that with the

8

elevator and to have residential.

9

presented -- we offered them as ideas to see how

It would be more

But we

10

the applicant would respond.

11

did not want to put residential on the ground

12

floor.

13

So the applicant

Other things we -- I think those were

14

like some of the biggest things we talked about

15

for the ground floor.

16

looked at the bay motif, because it seems to be

17

very -- it's very contextual -- you see that on

18

Harvard Street -- and those bays come down to the

19

ground level, but the expectation would be if

20

you were going to have something at the ground

21

level, there would need to be some articulation

22

at like the fourth or fifth floor.

23
24

We also talked -- we also

So I know the architecture, you know,
team was looking at articulation of two floors
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over four, and those were awkward combinations,

2

and so that's why working with six stories, it

3

made sense for them to carve out space at the

4

ground level.

5

reaction was, I was concerned that the ZBA might

6

not be happy with that, but I think Mr. Boehmer

7

felt with a six-story building carving out that

8

space does provide some relief.

9

about different ways to remove the arcade, so it

10

MR. GELLER:

You raised that -- you

made a comment about the depth of the bays?

13

MS. MORELLI:

14

MR. GELLER:

15

But we did talk

did come up.

11
12

But just knowing how negative the

Yes.
Was there a response to

that?

16

MS. MORELLI:

The feeling right now is

17

that it doesn't -- the articulation above the

18

bays is not sufficient enough to create a four-

19

story volume -- something that reads like a

20

four-story volume.

21

So right now --

MR. GELLER:

But was your comment

22

about the bays that they were too shallow, or

23

were you trying to --

24

MS. MORELLI:
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1

asked the depth of the bays, we were told they

2

were 16 inches.

3

skin, so Mr. Boehmer said, well, let's see a two-

4

foot setback above that to see what that looks

5

like.

6

doesn't -- it doesn't get that portion of the

7

building to read like four stories.

8

feels like a six-story building on the west

9

facade.

10

They read a little bit like

And while it does improve the bay, it just

MR. GELLER:

It still

So the change has been to

11

two feet, but it still reads -- because of the

12

upper levels, it still reads as too shallow?

13
14

MS. MORELLI:

Yes.

The feeling is

that that facade still needs more work.

15

MR. GELLER:

16

bays.

17

Harvard Street side?

18

There are two sets of

Are you specifically referring to the

MS. MORELLI:

So we were talking about

19

the Kenwood side.

20

wanted it to read four stories.

21

meet the ZBA's charge, and I think the --

22

obviously, what you're seeing on the Harvard

23

side, the balconies have been filled in.

24

Certainly the bay idea is a good idea, but what
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1

had been successful with the balcony on the

2

northeast could have been just a reduction of

3

space so that that corner bay could have been

4

shorter.

5

there is just more -- that former balcony area

6

has been filled in with massing.

7

be maybe a regression in terms of massing.

8
9

It could have gone to higher bays.

MR. GELLER:

So

So it seems to

The bays on Kenwood, the

plane of the face of the bay, does it extend

10

beyond the original face of the building?

11

understand my meaning?

12

MS. MORELLI:

Yes, I do.

Do you

I believe

13

that it does, I just don't -- I can't -- I think

14

it's better for the architect to answer that.

15

MR. GELLER:

16

I have.

17

of the applicant?

18
19

That's fine.

That's all

So who would like to start off on behalf

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

I would.

Thank

you.

20

MR. GELLER:

21

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

22

Gilbert, here on behalf of the applicant.

23

thank you, Maria, for that comprehensive

24

analysis.
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for a few minutes, and then we have a lengthy

2

presentation, which we will get into all of the

3

details and I think answer all of the questions

4

that were raised in the back and forth with Jesse

5

and Maria.

6

So I want to just say that we heard a

7

lot about what we couldn't do because, in the

8

opinion of the developer, it would make the

9

project uneconomic and unable to proceed.

But

10

one thing we didn't hear about is everything

11

that we have done since we filed this

12

application, which was in October of 2019 --

13

October 2019 is when we filed the application

14

with the town.

15

We've given at least half a dozen

16

extensions, requested by the town.

17

with the transportation board and satisfied

18

every single one of their issues and requests.

19

We also went to a meeting that was very helpful,

20

set up by Maria, with all of the DPW folks.

21

responded with our civil engineers in a detailed

22

report, and we have had extensive working group

23

meetings and spent a lot of time trying to

24

address not only the comments that we heard from
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1

the board, which varied, but the comments that

2

we heard from both Maria and Cliff.

3

So I think that when you see the

4

presentation tonight, I hope that you'll see

5

that many of the issues and questions were

6

addressed, but to take off two floors of this

7

building means the building doesn't go forward.

8
9

But what we did do -- and I have a
little bit of a different memory about the

10

retail space.

11

gone because we were asked to take it away and

12

reconfigure that bottom floor, which we did, and

13

you'll hear more about that.

14

units.

15

units.

16

The retail space is gone.

We lost five units.

It's

But we went from 30
We're down to 25

So I would like to turn it over to John

17

Harding to really go through all the iterations.

18

We've also provided in this presentation what

19

Maria requested and what you referred to, Mr.

20

Geller, as the various iterations from where

21

we've started and where we've come, along with

22

-- we heard a lot of comments, mostly from

23

Johanna, about the colors and the look and feel

24

of it.
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1

completely, so it's much more residential --

2

you'll see that, as well -- and we also added an

3

additional handicap spot, which was requested

4

by, I believe, the commission -- the chair of the

5

Commission on Disability.

6

And we're ready to answer any questions, but I'd

7

like to turn it over to John Harding for his

8

presentation.

9

So that's been added.

The other thing we did address, too,

10

is we've done an extensive study on the setbacks

11

going from Beacon all the way to Comm. Ave., down

12

Harvard, and I think you'll see that further

13

setback is not in line with what you see going

14

through Coolidge Corner, the reality on the

15

ground.

16

So go ahead, John.
MR. HARDING:

Thank you, Jennifer.

17

I'll share my screen, and hopefully this works.

18

Can everybody see my screen?

19

board for hearing us tonight.

20

Thank you to the

We are excited to present the updates

21

to the project, and we feel that we've made a lot

22

of good progress that we're very happy with, and

23

we think that -- we tried to take the board's

24

comments and Maria and Cliff's commentary during

1-800-727-6396

Veritext Legal Solutions

www.veritext.com

Page 28
1

our working sessions to heart and to try to make

2

meaningful changes to the project that would

3

create a better pedestrian experience on both

4

street sides of the project, as well as just

5

taking a step back and looking at the building

6

and finding an architectural style that better

7

blends in with the Harvard Street corridor and

8

Brookline, in general, I think.

9

So tonight we'll go through kind of a

10

few different things here I'll just try to

11

outline for you so you have an idea of where we

12

are as we're walking through this.

13

with just a quick recap of the charge, which

14

Maria did a fantastic job of, and just some of

15

the takeaways that we have from that, as well as

16

some of the takeaways that we have from the

17

working sessions working with Maria and Cliff,

18

and then we'll go into the setback study that

19

Jennifer just referenced.

20

It's pretty lengthy.

We'll start

We wanted it to

21

be very detailed for you guys to show you a lot

22

of examples and kind of walk you from Beacon

23

Street all the way down to the project and to the

24

town line.
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From there, we'll go into massing,

2

where we have a series of images.

3

a lot of slides, but we try to show you the image

4

of where the project is at, and then a comparison

5

of that and the two previous versions of that

6

same image so you can get direct comparisons.

7

It seems like

We've developed a lot of the ground

8

plane in the graphics a little bit better to be

9

more accurate to the real world conditions

10

there.

11

conceptual in nature.

12

everybody understand kind of what they're

13

looking at, where the street line is, where the

14

sidewalk is.

15

to the best of our ability, using kind of

16

standard pieces, made to look as close as we

17

could to real world conditions with rough

18

heights and widths.

19

I know before, it was a lot more
So hopefully that helps

The trees have all been, you know,

After the massing, we'll go through

20

the floor plans just to get a little bit more

21

detailed information so you can see kind of some

22

of the moves that we'll talk about in the massing

23

in the plans.

24

We'll have a metrics analysis after
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that to talk through the comparisons from the

2

original submission to November of 2020 to

3

today, and then we have a diagram that kind of

4

shows you where this building's volume exists in

5

relation to the property line so you can see

6

where we've pushed and pulled.

7

And then there's some site sections,

8

some shadow studies, kind of some of the other

9

miscellaneous pieces to the puzzle here in case

10

there's questions or people want to talk about

11

anything specific there, although I think the

12

meat of this presentation will exist in the

13

exterior design of dates in the setback study.

14

If anybody on the board has any

15

questions while I'm going through this, feel

16

free to jump in and ask.

17

questions live.

18

I'm happy to take

So the takeaways from the ZBA charge

19

that we really tried to tackle here lacked

20

sufficient mitigation of the massing to justify

21

the height.

22

that.

23

massing on the northeast corner before -- or in

24

the November 2020 version, and we have tried to
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1

embrace that and create an updated design there

2

that enhances that corner and works better with

3

this architectural expression.

4

Move the building back from Harvard.

5

As we said, we're trying to get to the setback

6

study.

7

The relationship to Kenwood, the two-and-a-half-

8

story abutter needs to be addressed, and the

9

massing is insufficient.

We feel that the -- well (inaudible).

We spent a lot of time,

10

in the last month or so, especially, working on

11

that side of the building.

12

We feel like it's a lot better.

We

13

feel like it's the best version that this

14

project has ever seen on that side and feels that

15

it is very responsive to the neighborhood, and I

16

think it's something that -- well, something

17

that we're very proud of to be able to look

18

forward to.

19

And it needs to look more residential.

20

That is something that we've taken very much to

21

heart.

22

got rid of all the gray, steel looking kind of

23

pieces.

24

architectural style of this building to fit in
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with the context that you even see in this image

2

here directly to the north of our page, north, at

3

least, on this image.

4

Some of the takeaways from the working

5

sessions that wasn't really gotten into in

6

Maria's recap.

7

what we produced, and some of the stuff that you

8

see here are the images of the building at that

9

time.

10

So we just wanted to talk through

So this is in progress work from those

working sessions.

11

So on January 26, we had a -- we

12

presented a new language to the front -- or to

13

the Harvard Street side of the project, and we

14

hadn't touched anything on the west side of the

15

building for that meeting.

16

the Harvard Street side of this, which is why a

17

lot of the comments from that meeting were you

18

really need to focus on the west side.

19

because we haven't done that yet.

20

just focused to get -- make sure that we were

21

going in a direction that felt like it was

22

positive movement and something that was

23

responsive to the charge.

24

We only focused on

That's

We have really

So from this meeting, we had very
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positive responses.

2

from that meeting, in particular.

3

the lighter color brick, the lighter color stone

4

base, the bay language on the corner which you

5

can kind of see in the middle image there where

6

we kind of looked at the context there.

7

know, there's a lot of play to having these kind

8

of round or faceted corners on a lot of the

9

buildings around this area, and those kind of

10

bookend.

The top two images here are
We introduced

You

So we're looking to bring that here.

11

As part of that language, we also see

12

a very strong cornice line.

13

brought the massing up to the fifth floor to keep

14

that consistent cornice line, to keep that

15

consistent language and style that you see

16

around this area and on the street.

17

of the color scheme was deemed to be a positive,

18

but there is encouragement to enhance the ground

19

floor, which had admittedly less definition in

20

that, as we were really focused on the big news

21

before that meeting.

22

So that's what

The warmth

So we need it to be a more welcoming

23

main entry.

24

between the entry and the sidewalk, which was
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1

contradictory to the commentary that we heard

2

from the hearing, so we did not pursue that any

3

further, because we wanted to respect the

4

comments that we heard from the board the last

5

time of getting rid of the planters and trying to

6

open that up, that it was separating things too

7

much.

8
9

There was a concern of the number of
columns in the colonnade.

We have reduced that.

10

The transition from the brick to the darker gray

11

that you can see in the top image was deemed a

12

little bit awkward.

13

we addressed that.

We completely agreed, and

14

Making sure the trash works, and the

15

overruns and mechanicals are shown on the roof,

16

we updated all of that.

17

changed.

18

The trash hasn't really

It's been consistent for a while now.
The brick massing was determined to be

19

good, and the focus of our work from this point

20

forward should be on the west side in the darker

21

gray.

22

takeaway from there.

23

headed in was good.

24

Other building elements was the biggest
The direction we were

So then on February 5, we had another
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working session where we developed the backside.

2

So the bottom two images are from that meeting.

3

In here, we introduced the bay language, very

4

well received.

5

strong bay on the corner, it really talks to --

6

even though it's two different scales, colors

7

and textures, it talks to the buildings on

8

Harvard having like kind of these -- like you see

9

in 514, these two kind of book-ended bays or

10

I think having this really

towers.

11

So bringing a brick one on Harvard and

12

then bringing in a more residential scaled

13

(inaudible) with a little bit more kind of

14

residential detailing to it, dropping that down

15

to the four-story level and creating this kind

16

of true overhanging bay out at the corner.

17

It really started to work well.

We

18

then had carried that down, that bay motif, down

19

the western edge to add texture and scale and

20

relief.

21

right up to our setback line there of building

22

code ability to put massing, so we cannot push

23

those out any further.

24

amount that we can do to create that relief, but
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we really wanted to add that articulation to add

2

some depth there, and we've played with all of

3

the facade kind of setbacks and stepbacks to try

4

to create the best product that we could within

5

the perimeters of making sure we have the square

6

footage to be feasible in this construction and

7

this building.

8
9

So we really pushed a lot of the
setbacks and stepbacks.

The biggest takeaways

10

from this was that the upper two floors weren't

11

deemed sufficient, as Maria was saying.

12

had proposed a couple of options on the call, and

13

we had looked at a lot of things realtime.

14

-- I admit my sketch-up skills are not great, so

15

they weren't, you know, fantastic renditions of

16

this building.

17

Cliff

I was

But we were kind of taking out like

18

large chunks of the building looking at, you

19

know, what if we step this back or what if we

20

notch this or what if we just push this whole

21

piece back, and I tried -- you know, I did my

22

best to do that in realtime with them.

23
24

And we saw for sure that there was
some things that maybe we thought might work
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that created some additional awkward proportions

2

and weren't really deemed very effective.

3

where we kind of left it is there was two options

4

from how -- or from the notes I had taken was

5

kind of taking the whole fifth and sixth floor

6

and pushing it back one foot, or taking a portion

7

of it and pushing it back two feet to create an

8

additional articulation, and that's the route

9

we've gone for the submission for today.

10

So

It did involve a little bit of

11

additional cutting, but we were able to take a

12

look at the plans and make that work.

13

actually got the square footage more in line

14

with where we were previously.

15

So it

As we've pushed and pulled and

16

infilled the bays that -- or the balconies that

17

were on the corner and then (inaudible) this

18

scheme at the direction of the charge, you know,

19

we really played with where square footage is,

20

where we're pushing, how can we get more

21

articulation, how can we get more depth, and

22

some of that is that we've pushed setbacks of the

23

building back so that the stepbacks aren't as

24

much as they would have been had we left the
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building where it was.

2

So we've increased the top floors,

3

say, pushing back, but we've also increased the

4

bottom floors with that, so sometimes those

5

stepbacks weren't as significant, but the whole

6

facade may have moved back, or pieces of that

7

facade may have moved back.

8

of kind of just like squeezing the balloon here

9

to make this work.

It's been a big game

So we left this meeting

10

saying other than the upper two levels on this

11

west side, the rest of the massing was good to

12

move forward with here.

13

So now I'm just going to go into the

14

scope of the study.

15

Beacon Street here on the right all the way down

16

to our project and just a little past that, up to

17

514 Harvard.

18

see here -- the way this is labeled, we look at

19

one side of the street and then the other side of

20

the street for a chunk of space between two kind

21

of intersecting streets.

22

Again, we're going from

So just walking through, what you

So for this case, it's from Beacon to

23

Babcock on the east side of the street.

24

stars indicate where pictures have been taken
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1

from, and then in this next image here, you'll

2

see that we have pictures of these buildings,

3

and identifying the setback.

4

Danny Danesh, has been -- has gone through and

5

measured all of these, and literally, you'll see

6

some tape measures in some of these photos.

7

The developer,

So we did the best we can.

Obviously,

8

we're measuring to the sidewalk, so it's --

9

we're looking here at zero-foot setbacks, the

10

other side of the street from Beacon to Babcock,

11

again, looking at different areas along this

12

street trying to get a good sampling of the

13

street.

14

this edge.

15

Again, there's zero-foot setbacks along

Skipping a little bit further down to

16

the area between Stedman to Fuller, looking

17

again at three locations here, you can see -- and

18

here you could see the tape measure.

19

looking at somewhere between one- to three-foot

20

setbacks, two- to four-foot setbacks, and zero-

21

foot setbacks along this edge.

22

little bit more relief, but not a lot.

23
24

We're

So there's a

Flipping to the other side here
between Stedman and Fuller on the west side,
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obviously there's been some development that's

2

happened on this side.

3

between a five- and a nine-foot setback at -- I

4

think this is 388.

5

if I'm wrong -- 388 or 384 Harvard.

6

There is somewhere

Jennifer, you can correct me

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

7

different address.

8

(inaudible) on the left-hand side?

9

MR. HARDING:

10
11

It's 370.

Now it's a
You're looking at

Correct.

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

That's 370

Harvard now.

12

MR. HARDING:

So 370 Harvard, we're

13

looking at a five- to nine-foot setback.

14

notice that the -- and especially as we get into

15

the next few images here, there's a language of

16

overhangs and canopies and -- I can't think of

17

the word -- overhangs and canopies that create a

18

series -- awnings was the other word I was

19

looking for -- that create a sense of overhang

20

over the public sidewalk.

21

You'll

In this case here, you're looking at

22

an overhang, and this is a canopy, but it's

23

creating an overhang.

24

the ground level, with a little bit of more
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breathing room up to the facade of the building,

2

and we felt that that is something that -- we

3

just wanted to point that out because there does

4

seem to be that in the current new multi-family

5

buildings that you're seeing here.

6

also have existing zero-foot setbacks in this

7

area.

8
9

So again,

From Fuller to Thorndike Street, we're
looking at zero-foot setbacks again, a lot of

10

retail hard up against the sidewalk coming right

11

out to the property lines.

12

awnings on the right in the middle images.

13

Again, creating that sense of like arrival,

14

there's some signage and engagement with the

15

sidewalk.

16

implied ceiling to the public realm that helps

17

attract your attention to those lower levels.

18

Here you can see the

By creating that space, it gives an

Focusing on Fuller to Thorndike on the

19

west side, here we're looking at 420 Harvard

20

with the new Tatte, zero-foot setbacks, one-foot

21

setbacks in this area, and you can even see that

22

outdoor seating is on the public sidewalk with

23

no setback, or virtually no setback in this

24

area.
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I think that that's something that's

2

really important to point out.

I know it's a

3

change probably from what they intended to do

4

that Covid probably brought on here, but for a

5

lot of places to have that space, it had to

6

encroach in the public right away.

7

amount of space at that ground level would have

8

been able to accommodate it.

9

there was retail there, it would have been able

Having some

For instance, if

10

to accommodate that additional seating area

11

without encroaching on those public sidewalks.

12

Focusing further on, Thorndike to

13

Kenwood Street on the east side.

14

to 455 Harvard where we do have an implied

15

colonnade with relief up to three feet, but zero

16

foot at the property line out the front face of

17

that building, zero feet in the middle and in

18

here.

19

break down.

20

This goes down

And then this is where it starts to really

On Harvard, you get a lot more parking

21

lots and other kind of spaces that just don't

22

have buildings here or have, as you'll see in the

23

next image, a gas station where it's not

24

feasible to have a building right at the edge for
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that use.

2

bit in this area where there hasn't been as much

3

development.

4

So it starts to fall apart a little

Looking at Thorndike to Kenwood on the

5

west side going up to our property, again, the

6

gas station really doesn't have a setback, a

7

six-foot setback here in the middle image, and

8

then another parking lot beyond that.

9

see a sense of how this starts to fall apart.

So you can

10

And then looking directly at our block here at

11

Kenwood to Verndale, a five- to ten-foot setback

12

that exists kind of basically on all three of

13

these locations that we've been looking at.

14

So in the big picture here, just

15

graphically trying to represent for you what

16

we're looking at, the yellow represents a zero-

17

to five-foot setback, and you can see that

18

that's about 80 percent of the overall

19

streetscape along Harvard Street, five- to ten-

20

foot setbacks in some pieces here and there that

21

represent about ten to 12 percent, and then

22

areas where we just weren't able to identify

23

anything because of the parking lot conditions

24

or a gas station, for instance.

1-800-727-6396

Veritext Legal Solutions

And we did leave

www.veritext.com

Page 44
1

out the school because it's kind of its own

2

animal.

3

classify that.

4

We weren't really sure what to -- how to

So of this area, if we're talking

5

about the look and feel and the development

6

pattern of Harvard Street and how this project

7

is going to complement that, we felt that having

8

a ground floor setback in the zero- to five-foot

9

range makes sense.

In our project, we're

10

proposing six-foot, but having the upper stories

11

of that building be a virtual -- were a one-foot

12

setback, that falls within the development

13

pattern of the streetscape.

14

And we feel that that -- along with

15

trying to make sure we're able to meet a lot of

16

the other goals and objectives of setbacks and

17

stepbacks, we felt like this gives us the best

18

opportunity to deal with massing change, and

19

it's consistent with the development along the

20

streetscape.

21

From here, we'll start to go into some

22

of the building imagery, and we'll go through

23

some of the materials, as well.

24

view, the view from Harvard Street on the south
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1

side, TJ Maxx is here to your right.

2

looking across, you can see the five-story

3

stronger (inaudible) brick portion, trying to

4

create a divide here that is strictly Harvard

5

Street facing and then a side that transitions

6

to the neighborhood.

7

If you're

I will note the colors here are

8

totally flexible.

9

like what they see in a color, we're happy to

10

look at other color options, but we felt like

11

this was a very positive movement from the more

12

institutional look in the darker colors that we

13

had in the last scheme.

14

If the board really doesn't

So we lightened up the brick.

We

15

carried in the limestone type of look along the

16

ground floor with a stone facade there that

17

matches or is more consistent with what you see

18

at 514 Harvard, introducing the bay motif, even

19

creating some -- occupied little balconies up at

20

the upper levels at each of those kind of

21

defining bays -- corner bays.

22

The garage entrance remains recessed

23

under the building.

24

of columns down to support this bay at the
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corner, but those columns are also worked in

2

with the design of the bay from that side of the

3

building.

4

The top floor is set back.
There is a jog, you can see, in this

5

far side here.

6

with, but we've looked to push that back a little

7

bit further and just create a cleaner design

8

that feels of the same color and relationship to

9

the base, but also takes a secondary step back

10

and feel to the whole massing in general where

11

you read the lower masses.

12

Some of that has been played

Just looking at materials, again,

13

bringing the brick up here with precast windows

14

and horizontal banding down at the ground floor,

15

looking at a series of storefront windows with a

16

stone panel, some sort of walkway accent

17

storefront or storefront window details.

18

As you turn the corner, going to the

19

fiber cement panel, pretty much for the other

20

sides with the two different colors, a whiter

21

limestone color up at the top floor to

22

complement the ground floor, and then also a

23

darker color to create a contrast and to create a

24

focus, creating a heavier base and a lighter top
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to make the top kind of recede and not be the

2

focal point.

3

ornamentation and articulation in the base,

4

again, making that the focal point and letting

5

the top be cleaner, simpler and kind of recede to

6

the background.

7

A lot more detail and

Along the whole base, you'll see this

8

see this gray material here.

Looking to bring in

9

a granite or some other heavy-duty stone that

10

can withstand the test of time down there and the

11

impact that you get with shoveling and the wear

12

and tear that the ground plane gets and bringing

13

that out into the ramp and into the stairs to

14

make that feel distinctly different than the

15

building facade itself in its own element that

16

adds another level of texture to the ground

17

plane.

18

So what you see here every image that

19

I show, and I think I have seven or eight of

20

these, to show you different views from around

21

the project.

22

with the current image on the right, the

23

original design that we proposed in the top

24

left, and then the last version from November
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2020 in the bottom left.

2

So you can see that a lot of the larger

3

massing moves were substantially similar, I

4

would say, from November 2020 to today, and I

5

think that's because we made a lot of really big

6

changes between the original design and the last

7

design that we proposed, removing the retail,

8

removing five units, and really carving away at

9

those corners.

10

You can see from the top left image,

11

it was a much taller, broader, stoutier feeling

12

building, and we've really worked to try to drop

13

that scale as we've -- and create a nicer,

14

brighter, happier, more engaging project,

15

especially on the Harvard Street side here from

16

this image.

17

I think that, you know, recessing the

18

garage entrance -- and in the last scheme, we

19

were creating relief at the corners.

20

scheme, we're creating prominence at the corner

21

with the bay and creating something that's

22

attractive and feels of Brookline and feels much

23

more residential in scale and texture.

24

In this

So now a view from Harvard Street on
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the other side of the road looking down, you

2

really get a kind of what the end of this

3

building looks like.

4

the Harvard Street side and the Kenwood Street

5

side.

6

story building.

7

building.

8
9

You see the hard split of

We're not trying to say we're not a sixWe understand we're a six-story

We're doing what we can to create
simple details, letting that relief recess up at

10

the top, creating simple banding cornice lines,

11

not trying to compete with a more ornate sort of

12

banding in the brick or the more ornate details

13

in the bays, but really trying to create a series

14

of masses that help the eye step down and

15

creating a focal point of the ground floor

16

between the windows and the lighter limestone

17

look stone facade here that creates an engaging

18

streetscape as you walk down Harvard Street.

19

Going back and comparing again here,

20

you can see the corner here that was in the

21

original scheme that went up all the way to the

22

six stories all the way up to the face, how we

23

peeled that back in the last version, and we

24

brought in the wood.
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was about it being faux wood.

2

we ever thought that, I think we thought it was

3

real wood, but that all happened, and we didn't

4

have a chance to talk about that.

5

I don't know that

I just wanted to let you guys know

6

that our intention is to do real authentic

7

materials here, something that feels the texture

8

and the feeling.

9

replaced the ground floor with stone, which I

And so, you know, we've

10

think is probably more appropriate for this

11

area, but we have left some wood in the ceiling

12

there to bring in that warmth, and that was one

13

of the comments that I think Maria really liked

14

and asked us to -- was to warm that up, putting

15

some lights.

16

We have some sconces on the wall, but

17

we'll have some down lights in the top and really

18

create like a nice lit up, safe, secure very

19

visible corner here with, you know, work space.

20

You know, there's a fitness area inside there

21

and kind of a work from home kind of area next to

22

that that are engaging, really for people at all

23

hours of the day.

24

visible and active, and it won't be dead retail,
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1

which I think we're seeing a lot of right now

2

with Covid.

3

activate the streetscape right now, you know, as

4

soon as this project is built and you have

5

residents in there, and those people are using

6

that space.

7

So I think this is a good way to

Moving back down the street -- or

8

around the corner here onto Kenwood Street, so

9

you can see we've added a lot more context here

10

showing the street, the sidewalks where the

11

trees are.

12

houses, trying to really show you that we are

13

trying to make relationships and show real life

14

context.

15

here.

16

We've added more detail to the

We're not trying to hide anything

You can see the bays really develop

17

here.

18

broader and bigger, and there's honestly more

19

space here to create a more statement piece, and

20

then the ones that -- beyond that, there's three

21

that are kind of inset into the face of that

22

building as it goes further down.

23

off, I think about a foot and a half or -- 16

24

inches, a foot and a half.
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exactly.

2

We've worked to push the face of this

3

building backwards and pull the bays as far

4

forward as we could to create that relief.

5

the two feet that Maria was talking about before

6

was that we actually stepped this piece up here,

7

which is one of the things that we talked to

8

Cliff about, was to create this jog in the mass

9

here, help break down the length of this facade,

But

10

and push this section of the building back two

11

feet, so creating an additional stepback, not

12

additional relief in the bays.

13

Going to a comparison from the

14

original design to today, we didn't have windows

15

on that corner, and obviously, the facade beyond

16

that was residential and material.

17

the best result design.

18

create new datums and to bring a four-story

19

volume down in this area.

20

It wasn't

We worked really hard to

One of the comments that they got, I

21

think it must have been in one of the working

22

sessions, was to look to get rid of the kind of

23

jobs in the five-story portions of how the top

24

floor comes all the way down.
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1

things that drove us to creating this other --

2

this new datum at four stories, and rather than

3

having recesses, we incorporated the bays,

4

pulling that motif from other areas along

5

Harvard Street, but I think you see -- you know,

6

you'll see bays incorporated in residential

7

structures around town, as well.

8

Going to the TJ Maxx parking lot side,

9

another view that I think we all thought was an

10

effective way of looking at this project at the

11

last hearing and in the working sessions.

12

building does get taller here, and I know that in

13

Cliff's last report, he identifies this as less

14

successful than the previous scheme.

15

little surprised by that, because we felt like

16

this had been talked about a lot, and we thought

17

this was something that everybody was in support

18

of, but we felt like having this up at the fifth

19

floor is strengthened by the language in the

20

area.

21

So the

We were a

You see like on 514 Harvard strong

22

cornice lines that go bay to bay.

23

up here and having it kind of keep a consistent

24

datum up at that level felt like it was
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1

consistent with the other stylistic buildings of

2

this type in this area.

3

move, and we think it's a successful move, but

4

it's something, obviously, we'd love to hear

5

your thoughts on tonight.

6

We think it's a strong

Down at the ground floor, we were able

7

to remove a column and space the columns out a

8

little bit further, enhancing that ground floor

9

interaction with the stairs and the ramp, adding

10

that additional color there -- color and texture

11

to make that feel of the ground and not of the

12

building.

13

And then just going into the history

14

here, obviously, the building -- we have removed

15

the stair that used to go all the way up to the

16

roof and the strong, hard corners.

17

away at the corner.

18

our team really liked the November 2020 design

19

and what the corner element was doing.

20

asked to infill those corners and try to carve

21

away in other areas and to create additional

22

relief, so that is the goal of what we did in

23

this new scheme, and try to come up with a

24

different residential -- a residential
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appropriate architectural style.

2

So those are some of the things that

3

really drove this, was how do we infill these

4

corners for the balcony areas that weren't

5

deemed by the board as being successful or

6

attractive and put that back as real meaningful

7

residential space and allowing us to carve away

8

at other areas of the project.

9

A view here looking up Harvard Street

10

at the front entrance, again, and 514 has this

11

stair that goes up to its main entrance,

12

incorporating that again here.

13

at other versions.

14

question just a little while ago.

15

starting to go from the November 2020 hearing,

16

we did look at some white massing models.

17

didn't provide it to Maria, but we did show it on

18

one of the screens, something that -- with a bay

19

here that kind of came all the way to the ground,

20

and it was a little bit weird looking, and it

21

wasn't engaging the way we wanted it to.

And we did look

I know Jesse had asked that
As we were

We

22

We felt like creating the relief and

23

creating some out of overhang, but articulating

24

that overhang with the bay and letting that
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carve in and not be one big long space was

2

creating a more effective public realm

3

experience down here at the ground plane that

4

was more engaging, both for residents that are

5

going to live here, but also just getting a

6

little bit of breathing room and plying that

7

ceiling to this area.

8

with a lot of the canopies and awnings that we

9

saw on some of the rest of Harvard Street.

10

That is effective and used

So again, here is just the history of

11

this image.

12

the original design came all the way out to the

13

sidewalk and all the way down to grade.

14

create that relief, but added that kind of steel

15

-- kind of exposed steel look.

16

bit more industrial and a little bit more trendy

17

of a building -- peeling that back, taking the

18

colors down to more traditional relationships

19

with the lighter base on the brick above and

20

really kind of simplifying that corner, getting

21

rid of that hard point that was talked about.

22

You can see where the building in

We did

It was a little

I don't know if that was talked about

23

in the hearing or in one of the working sessions,

24

but at some point, we talked about trying to get
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rid of that hard point at the corner there and to

2

create some better relief at this corner that

3

feels like it's got better flow, and I think that

4

that's something that -- adding this bay at the

5

corner really helps us to create a really nice

6

transition of the streetscape here.

7

Just focusing in a little bit on the

8

entrance design, adding the sconces, you can see

9

the wood look ceiling -- or not wood look -- wood

10

ceiling with the down lights in it, going with a

11

wood ceiling that's going to be of the limestone

12

family, not of the brick family, so not trying to

13

do something really brown and warm, but doing

14

something that's more got that like kind of

15

whitewashed look, maybe like an aged cedar type

16

of look that you would see, something that helps

17

it feel like you've carved under the building

18

here, and it's of the same pallet of the granite

19

and the limestone look stone facade.

20

And just backing up from where we

21

were, the original design had the building

22

coming right to grade with the door right on the

23

sidewalk.

24

didn't have as much grading information, so
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there was a lot of things that didn't

2

necessarily work about how that scheme

3

interacted with grade and with the garage

4

entrance that we learned after that submission,

5

which has led us to requiring the need for -- if

6

the lobby is in this corner, which I think we all

7

felt was the right spot for it, having some sort

8

of stairway, some sort of real entrance stoop.

9

And you can see we really peeled that

10

back and tried to minimize that and create it to

11

feel more of a stoop that's designed with those

12

columns underneath this bay and not something

13

that just wraps around the corner, but having to

14

create some sort of accessible way up and a nice

15

kind of presentation to the sidewalk of the

16

entrance to the building.

17

something that we've developed from that

18

original design through the November 2020 design

19

and further developed to today.

20

I think that's

Just taking a step back to look at the

21

facade as a whole, you can see here how that

22

slope really plays in now that we've been able to

23

better understand that since the first

24

submission.
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original design, with glass, retail store

2

frontage right at the sidewalk, very consistent

3

with what we've seen in the Harvard Street

4

setback study.

5

On the November 2020, we pushed that

6

back.

We tried to create a little more detail in

7

making that feel more of the canopy language

8

with the framed kind of columns and a little bit

9

more of a fun facade on the backdrop.

Definitely

10

a little bit more trendy.

11

from that.

12

classic, more timeless with the materials and

13

the design, a very simple, clean design, but

14

something that feels welcoming and engaging of

15

other areas in Brookline.

16

Here, we've gone away

We've gone more traditional, more

And then I think this may be the last

17

image of the building imagery, but just to give

18

you an idea of what the back of this building

19

looks like and how that facade breaks down, and

20

you can see that the elevator overrun and the

21

mechanical equipment is all up on the roof in all

22

of these images.

23

image, you're not going to see it in real life

24

from any of those perspectives, because those
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equipment pieces are pretty small, and they are

2

centered over the bulk of the building.

3

In the facade design, we have been

4

able to push different pieces of this building

5

back a little bit, and we were able to create

6

that bailiwick, which furthers down the length

7

of the western facade as you're coming down

8

Kenwood Street as a pedestrian, obviously,

9

because you wouldn't drive that way, but as a

10

pedestrian walking down the street, and this

11

building starts to reveal itself where the

12

driveway is for 9 Kenwood.

13

some of this building.

14

You'll be able to see

As you go down, you'll see that that

15

language and texture continues down that facade.

16

It's not -- we didn't look at this as a backdoor.

17

We're spending a lot of good design detailing

18

and traditional detailing down the length of

19

this facade to create a lot of articulation, and

20

really to try to bring the perceived focal point

21

down, while keeping, again, very minimal, simple

22

detailing of the upper levels, we were able to

23

create some additional relief up there.

24

We were also able -- we did push this
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facade back a little bit further and added a

2

small balcony space out here, as well, again,

3

creating some more interaction, another level of

4

activity.

5

Going back over the history here, it

6

was very much a repetitive series of windows on a

7

simple mass, no windows in the corner.

8

started to break that down with slices that came

9

all the way through, breaking that hard four-

We

10

story datum, and in this most recent scheme,

11

again, creating that datum, keeping the eye

12

level down from four stories and not necessarily

13

exemplifying or trying to celebrate what's

14

happening above and bringing it down, but really

15

keeping it on the scale and the attention to the

16

lower levels.

17

I'll go through some of the plans just

18

to show you some of the up -- there's not a lot

19

of updates here, but I can talk through some of

20

the history of things that we've done.

21

able to -- in the November 2020 scheme, we were

22

able to add that second handicap spot.

23

little difference that we have from this plan

24

from that one is there was a little bit of a jog

1-800-727-6396

Veritext Legal Solutions

We were

The one

www.veritext.com

Page 62
1

here.

2

cleaned that up and just kind of squared off that

3

corner.

4

footage, but it's in the garage.

5

meaningful space.

6

In working with the new bay scheme, we

So there is a little bit more square
It's not

We did add three spots in the city

7

lift pit system, or the stacker system, adding a

8

pit, so we were able to increase that parking

9

count from six to ten from the original scheme.

10

In this last scheme, we've actually taken the

11

stair, and we've rotated it and pushed it back

12

into the building a little bit, really trying to

13

open up as much of the facade for meaningful

14

glazing areas and more engagement, rather than

15

bringing that stair all the way out to the

16

exterior if we do need to get some light out.

17

we just minimized that to just a small corridor.

18

So

Moving our way up, you can start to

19

see how the bays interact.

20

out and tried to make sure that the bays are

21

aligned with how bedrooms would lay out in those

22

spaces, not in full detail, but at least at the

23

conceptual levels.

24

your bathrooms would be here, your living spaces
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would be, and the larger bay over at the corner

2

here where this B1 is out on Harvard Street, and

3

then the recess that that creates.

4

placed units within the building that are going

5

to react well to those facade changes.

6

see here the stair rotated in the scheme and how

7

that would create a bedroom nook and really

8

opens up this whole facade for a more engaging

9

exterior envelope.

10

So purposely

You can

Going up to the fifth floor, you can

11

see here where we pushed this two-foot recess

12

back creating additional relief out at the

13

Kenwood edge, the balcony that is created above

14

the octangular bay, the balcony that is created

15

on the northern side of the site, as well, and

16

then the Harvard Street side stays the same as it

17

was.

18

looking at a small balcony here on the corner

19

above that main corner defining bay, a stepback,

20

but not necessarily any balconies along the rest

21

of that facade, and then the units from below

22

from the fifth floor extrude up here.

23
24

And then as you get to the sixth floor,

So we really looked to minimize indoor
corridor space, maximize where we were able to
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1

put units so we could carve as much as possible.

2

It's pretty consistent in the planning as to --

3

of where we were on the November 2020 scheme.

4

we got rid of five units in that scheme and the

5

retail, we had to do a little shift in the mix,

6

as well.

7

find a way to make the rents work.

8

in these last two versions of the building are

9

probably just a little bit bigger, a few more

As

Getting rid of all that, you have to
So the units

10

two-beds than there were studios, and being able

11

to do that to really start to carve away at the

12

massing.

13

Just some metrics for you, and I

14

think, Jesse, maybe this is something you were

15

looking for in one of your questions to Maria

16

earlier, just a comparison.

17

things that I thought were important from a data

18

standpoint from the unit count, going from a 30

19

down to 25, so we've removed five units, parking

20

space and the ratio for that, going from six

21

spaces at 20 percent parked to ten spaces at 40

22

percent parked.

23

and double the ration in coordination with the

24

unit reduction.
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changed, but we were able to add that second

2

handicap space.

3

changed.

4

The storage and height hasn't

The property setbacks, this is a

5

really complicated one.

There's a lot of

6

numbers there -- I have a diagram on the next

7

sheet that will hopefully kind of describe where

8

we've pushed and pulled -- but generally, a lot

9

of the street side setbacks are around the same,

10

and it's hard to like generalize everything,

11

because we've pushed some areas, and we've

12

pulled some areas, and we've really tried to

13

create good relief and good setbacks to be able

14

to create better stepbacks.

15

You can see on the stepbacks on the

16

street sides, we've been able to increase the

17

minimum stepback by a foot, upwards of almost

18

four additional feet.

19

street sides -- on the Kenwood Street side, it's

20

gone up to a five-and-a-half-foot stepback,

21

whereas before we were down to just a two-foot

22

stepback.

23

side where we added that additional balcony,

24

we've moved that from four feet to five feet.

1-800-727-6396

In some areas on the

And then on the 514 Harvard Street

Veritext Legal Solutions

So

www.veritext.com

Page 66
1

we've created a little bit of relief there, a

2

little bit more relief on the Kenwood side, as

3

well as pushing that volume.

4

One of the reasons why the six-inch

5

used to be a foot was because we had pushed the

6

whole face of the building back to be able to

7

create the space to create those bays.

8

particular area happened to get a little smaller

9

of a stepback, whereas other areas we were able

10

So that

to create more significant stepbacks.

11

The amenity square footage is

12

unchanged from the November submission at 1770,

13

up from the original 600.

14

want to talk about with the amenity, a learning

15

experience from Covid in the multi-family

16

industry.

17

I think one thing we

And one of the things that kind of

18

helps lead us to making some of the last changes,

19

you have a lot more people living in these multi-

20

family developments that have no place to go,

21

don't feel like they can get out of their

22

apartment, and having a managed area within

23

their building to have a gym that can be cleaned

24

on a regular basis, can be kept safe, you don't
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have to go to the public gym, having these

2

amenities, having a co-working space where

3

you're working from home and you can go rent out

4

or go down to the area and have -- go find a seat

5

to be able to work in and just get a little bit

6

of relief from your day-to-day smaller living

7

environment, those spaces are proving to be

8

extremely important and extremely desirable.

9

And for the product to really be

10

marketable and viable in the -- in what we think

11

is going to be the new normal here for a multi-

12

family development, this additional space and

13

this additional relief in creating some openness

14

is really important to the success of the

15

building and creating a great attractive area

16

for these residents to come to.

17

So we think that this amenity space is

18

a huge plus.

19

it also creates a level of flexibility for the

20

residents here that's in a safe environment

21

that's limited in occupancy, you know, to just

22

the people who live there, and you're not having

23

to expose people to the rest of the world where

24

they don't have that level of control.
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So that was one of the things that

2

drove us to adding the small fitness center and

3

the small -- we call it like a work from home

4

area or a co-working area where people have some

5

flexibility to manage their lives in this kind

6

of new normal that probably won't change and go

7

back to where we were 100 percent.

8
9

And then just, again, retail is gone.
That was a good trade for the amenity square

10

footage.

11

able to make this project viable, which is why

12

when we lost the units and we lost the retail,

13

some of those units had to get a little bit

14

bigger.

15

That was a hit to the pro forma to be

And you can see the total gross square

16

footage has gone up a couple of hundred square

17

feet.

18

we were pushing and pulling in that little bit of

19

space in the garage that I talked about earlier.

20

So we're virtually the same as where we were in

21

overall envelope.

22

appropriated to try to create better

23

relationships for setbacks, stepbacks, and

24

articulation on the facades.
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So you can go through all of these

2

pieces if you really want, but the pink kind of

3

outlines the property line extruded to the sky,

4

and all of these nodes are identifying the

5

distance of those different planes all the way

6

around the building from that property line.

7

So you can see the push back where how

8

far different pieces have been set back.

Some of

9

these pieces -- in this part, there was three

10

foot seven.

That used to be about two and a half

11

feet.

12

stepback.

13

here was of one plane previously, so everywhere

14

we got this carved out area creating the bay, we

15

were able to create additional setback relief

16

there.

So that's an area that we got additional

17

Obviously, the whole frontage along

This piece used to be a funny shape

18

and like kind of went back on an angle, so we

19

squared that off to make it feel more consistent

20

with what we had going on here, but that's six

21

feet back.

22

alleyway along 514 Harvard were six feet to

23

eight feet back.

24

beyond 514 Harvard, like where they have a
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little bit of a courtyard space or some relief

2

back there, so we come out closer to the property

3

line in the back in that area.

4

windows there, because it wouldn't be allowed by

5

building code.

6

And again, no

As you walk your way around on

7

Kenwood, creating additional relief here, moving

8

back from what we're calling, you know, no

9

setback to two foot four, to stepping back a

10

little bit more to three foot ten.

11

whole dark mass used to sit out in front of the

12

brick.

13

about in the January working session, was how

14

can we try to push that gray volume back so it's

15

less prominent than the brick element.

16

Really this

That was one of the things we talked

So we've been able to effectively do

17

that and keep some volume out here to create that

18

focal point and identify that distinct

19

residential character that we've been able to

20

wrap around the west side.

21

vary in depth, but they're at least five feet

22

from the property line.

23
24

Obviously, the bays

There's a little bit of additional
setback up at the area above the bay.
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1

wanted to get the location of those walls

2

appropriate to that corner bay, so we did push

3

that back an additional foot and a half or so --

4

I think it used to be about 12 feet -- to make

5

that work.

6

We are pushed back again an additional

7

two feet here, and the property line kind of

8

slopes and gets closer to the building as you get

9

further back, so that's why you see some of these

10

have a little bit of a range, and it's because

11

it's tighter as you get further to the site, and

12

it gets wider from the property line as you get

13

closer to Kenwood.

14

We're getting close to the end here,

15

so thank you guys for your patience.

16

sections here where we tried to throw -- I want

17

to show some dimensions and some property lines

18

where you can see some of the relief going up to

19

-- and some of these vary.

20

property line here on the left, it actually like

21

kind of peels on a bit of a curve or splays on a

22

little bit of an angle.

23

accurate for this particular section cut, but

24

this gets, you know, up to 11 feet in some spots,
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and this is seven to seven six.

2

Then we get a little closer down here

3

at the ground floor with no windows along the

4

edge so that we could get that other handicap

5

spot in, so we were -- from the original scheme

6

to the more recent schemes, the parking did get a

7

little closer at the ground floor to 9 Kenwood to

8

get that additional handicap parking spot -- I

9

believe we talked about that at the last hearing

10

-- and then we were able to create more relief on

11

the upper floors, pushing that back.

12

You get a sense of the overhang and,

13

as a pedestrian, how that creates and implies

14

that ceiling, like the other canopies and

15

awnings do along Harvard Street.

16

some data here and the additional stepbacks

17

along Harvard.

18

And then just

From the other side further into the

19

property -- or from the other side going from

20

Kenwood here on the left to 514 to 518 Harvard

21

here on the right, you can see the six -- this is

22

cut through to six-foot setbacks that's up near

23

the front where the units are, the building

24

going beyond here with the bay on the corner, a
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1

little bit of the overhang as it wraps like

2

around the corner here, and our bike storage is

3

actually down on this side, on the other side of

4

the building, as I outlined in the plans.

5

The shadow study here -- I think this

6

is our last slide.

7

the end.

8

guys in red where we're casting shadows.

9

summertime, we'll have some shadows being cast

10

We're getting very close to

Really, it's about just showing you
In the

into the neighborhood.

11

What I would like to point out,

12

though, is there's a lot of really larger trees

13

here that are already providing shadow on that

14

ground in there.

15

adding shadow, it's just going to be shadowing

16

on top of the trees that are already shadowing

17

there.

18

might have spilled through.

19

Our building is not going to be

It might fill in some of the light that

Around noontime, midday, it's just a

20

small amount onto 514 and then a little bit as

21

you get closer to the mid afternoon out onto

22

Harvard Street, and that's a pretty consistent

23

message for really all times of the year.

24

is always tough.
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1

But you can see even like in the middle of

2

winter, we will be casting more shadows onto

3

Harvard Street, but we don't really go any

4

further than the extents of the shadows at 514

5

and 518 Harvard are providing currently.

6

So pretty minimal impacts throughout

7

the middle of the day, most of the year earlier

8

in the morning, longer shadows headed towards

9

the west, and obviously in the wintertime long

10

shadows that will go all the way across the TJ

11

Maxx parking lot.

12

Just an image here to wrap it up.

So

13

the big picture, the things that we've tried to

14

do, create a more residential scale building,

15

residential appearance building, something that

16

is more contextually related, especially to 514

17

Harvard to the north, working on adapting the

18

materiality and the kind of coloration that you

19

see there, creating a brighter, happier palate

20

for the project, and working on creating -- you

21

know, really adding the residential details that

22

were not as well executed in a traditional style

23

in the last round.

24

I think after that, I will open it up
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to comments and questions.

2
3

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

Johanna, do

you have any questions?

4

MS. SCHNEIDER:

Are we going to make

5

comments now, or are we going to wait until after

6

Cliff presents?

7

MR. GELLER:

We're going to wait until

8

after Cliff presents for our comments, but I

9

just wanted to see if there were any -- it's a

10

lot of information, and to the extent that any

11

members of the panel want to ask specific

12

questions on the presentation, I think now would

13

be an appropriate time.

14
15

MS. SCHNEIDER:

I do have a couple of

questions, if you don't mind me jumping in.

16

MR. GELLER:

Jump.

17

MS. SCHNEIDER:

The first question I

18

had had to do with the setback study along

19

Harvard.

20

regarding the relationship between building

21

heights and the amount of setbacks.

22

I wondered if you had gathered any data

For example, you know, you showed us a

23

lot of stuff that had, you know, a zero- or a

24

one-foot setback, and I wondered if they're a
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taller building, do they have a larger setback

2

from that.

3

setbacks for every single building on Harvard.

4

With some representative examples, it was

5

helpful.

6

this is a taller building, in the relationship

7

between setback and height.

8

question.

9

you can answer them as I go.

10

It felt like we didn't get the

But I am interested, you know, because

That's my first

I can keep going with questions, or

MR. HARDING:

I can jump in and try to

11

answer that quickly.

12

about the ground plane than we were at the

13

height.

14

newer buildings there where you do have

15

additional height, some of them were in that --

16

at least one was in that five to nine range.

17

Harvard was in the zero range, and it is five

18

stories, I believe.

19

I think we focused more

I know there's -- you know, some of the

420

So there's I guess a range there.

20

Some of them had a little bit of relief, and some

21

of them had a little bit of relief and maybe a

22

little bit of articulation.

23

more a vertical plane at the property line.

24

MS. SCHNEIDER:
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analysis correctly in your slide, you had

2

trucked down Harvard Street toward the project.

3

It looked to me like the area immediately around

4

the project site actually had more setbacks than

5

many of the blocks that were posted at Beacon

6

Street.

7

Is that right?
MR. HARDING:

I think it's more --

8

well, I can go back to that slide real quick.

9

was more than --

10

MS. SCHNEIDER:

It looked to me like

11

there was red and blue surrounding this project

12

site and a lot more yellow away from it, right?

13

MR. HARDING:

Right.

So part of the

14

charge to us was to evaluate the conditions of

15

Harvard Street.

16

we've learned the red is like -- is not an

17

applicable thing.

18

gas station.

19

has a setback necessarily based on this use.

20

So we did that, and I think what

It's a parking lot, or it's a

It's like not really a thing that

MS. SCHNEIDER:

It's like a visual

21

relief, right?

22

building sitting right on the sidewalk for

23

those.

24

I mean, it's not like there's a

MR. HARDING:
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MS. SCHNEIDER:

You know, again, we

2

can talk about that later, but I thought that was

3

sort of interesting in terms of a trend in the

4

travel down Harvard toward the direction of the

5

project site.

6

My next question had to do with -- oh,

7

that's the perfect image.

Thank you -- about

8

that blank wall on the corner of Harvard and

9

Kenwood as the building bounds the corner where

10

those biking folks are.

11

programmatic reason why that's a blank wall?

12

MR. HARDING:

Is there some

No, I think that that --

13

that's a good point.

I think we would want to

14

add windows there, and that was one of the

15

reasons we had made the stair rotation.

16

that's actually an area that we would likely

17

want to add some glazing.

18

MS. SCHNEIDER:

So

And again, it was a

19

lot of information, and I apologize if I missed

20

something, but I did -- is there any kind of

21

proposed greenery, green wall, planting, buffer

22

area between the side of the building and the

23

closest residential abutter on Kenwood?

24

looked to me like it was just like a big
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1

expansive sort of gray wall, which I'm assuming

2

is the side of your garage, and I wondered if

3

there's any planting or anything, you know, as a

4

visual buffer to provide some relief for that

5

neighboring abutter's house?

6

MR. HARDING:

I don't know that we

7

actually had a plan for that, but I think -- it's

8

not an area that's going to have a sidewalk or

9

anything like that, so we would -- I'm sure we

10

would be happy to provide planting in that area

11

that's appropriate to help screen that area.

12

MS. SCHNEIDER:

And I guess my last

13

question was sort of related to that, which is

14

whether or not you had shown these plans to that

15

abutter and if they had any reaction?

16
17

MR. HARDING:
to that.

18
19

I don't know the answer

MS. SCHNEIDER:

Thank you.

That's all

I have.

20

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

21

questions; not comments, questions?

22

MS. POVERMAN:

Kate,

So question.

I just

23

want to confirm is the -- maybe it will turn into

24

a question.
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be a one-door garage going up, because I

2

couldn't entirely tell from some of the

3

pictures?

4
5

MR. HARDING:

As it's drawn, yes,

currently.

6

MS. POVERMAN:

Have you considered --

7

similar to the articulation that Ms. Schneider

8

suggested, on the side of the building that

9

faces 514 Harvard, if you could show that.

There

10

seemed to be really some dead space there.

Yeah,

11

if you could see where the -- above that green

12

car like that looks from the '50s, where the

13

trees are, there seems to be some pretty dead

14

space, instead of maybe windows that could be

15

there on the second, third floors.

16

understand what I'm saying?

17

MR. HARDING:

18

MS. POVERMAN:

19

MR. HARDING:

Do you

Up here?
Yes.
Got you.

So that was

20

actually intentional.

21

windows that are on the property line facing our

22

building that are not per code.

23

us creating windows that would create people

24

looking directly into their units, we tried to
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1

not create that kind of awkward condition.

2

that's why we don't start the windows until

3

above the roof level of their building.

4

have added windows there for those units so that

5

those windows would kind of stack all the way

6

down, but we felt like that would be intrusive to

7

their privacy.

8
9

MS. POVERMAN:

So

We could

In terms of the -- this

is a technical question, but in terms of the

10

workspace, is there special aeration, air

11

conditioning filtering that you guys are going

12

to be providing to make it a safe environment?

13

MR. HARDING:

That's a good question.

14

I think we would be looking at it -- like most

15

common areas, it would have a certain level of

16

air changes per hour.

17

on that, but I think that, you know, we could --

18

in this climate, you know, being reduced to just

19

25 units of people that would be able to be using

20

that space, providing like the safe wipes and

21

everything for people to be able to clean it

22

themselves, but also having them share the

23

management company having that being cleaned on

24

a regular basis, as well.
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MS. POVERMAN:

Well, I think we all

2

know that -- hopefully -- that being in a

3

restaurant is one of the most dangerous places

4

to be because the air exchange cannot be

5

adequately managed.

6

making sure that there is an adequate air

7

exchange, as they're now requiring to be in

8

schools, to make it a healthy work environment,

9

which, I think, having such an environment is

10

great in the current employment, so to speak.

So what I would suggest is

11

MR. HARDING:

12

MS. POVERMAN:

13

MR. GELLER:

14

That's a good idea.
That's all I have.
Thank you, Kate.

Randolph.

15

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Just two things, and

16

they're actually both -- Kate and Johanna

17

actually covered parts of them, but I just have a

18

little follow up.

19

question, beyond the place -- Mr. Harding, you

20

just talked about the windows that you omitted

21

because they would, you know, face directly into

22

other units.

23

windows, you know, at the outer walls of the

24

units in the building everywhere else where the
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building code allows them, or are there other

2

blank areas?

3

MR. HARDING:

Yes, where the building

4

code allows them, for sure.

I'm just going to go

5

to this.

6

have windows -- and again, it's because of the

7

proximity to the building that are on the

8

property line, but we did not put them here, and

9

we didn't need them.

So the only other area that we don't

Like every bedroom and

10

living room in this unit will have a window.

11

I think it's a two-bedroom here, so this would be

12

the living space where the bay is, and you'd have

13

-- the windows to each side would be the bedrooms

14

in that unit.

15

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

At the part of -- the

16

units in the adjacent building at 514 Harvard

17

that face that gray rectangle, are there also

18

existing windows in those neighboring units as

19

there are closer to Harvard Street?

20

MR. HARDING:

21

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

22

MR. HARDING:

Along this side here?
Yes.

I don't know the answer

23

to that.

24

Google, and I could try to look it up on the
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side, if you want, to give you an answer.

2

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

3

and I can wait for that.

4

right.

5
6

MR. HARDING:

Yeah, that's fine,
My other -- oh, all

I should have that

answer in just a second here.

7

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

That little step in

8

the south wall makes me think it's possible

9

there are.

10

MR. HARDING:

11

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

12

Yeah, you can see here.
All right.

Thank

you.

13

MR. HARDING:

I think there are a few.

14

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Back to your design,

15

and this is back to the west wall and, you know,

16

the first floor of the garage that Johanna was

17

asking about, you know, could you screen or

18

something like that, a sort of different

19

question.

20

because you made all these very strong changes

21

in the bay articulation down on this side, did

22

you consider extending any of that down to the

23

garage, you know, in the -- just as some kind of

24

pattern, you know, blind window openings,
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anything that just looks like it's, you know,

2

connected to what's above it?

3

MR. HARDING:

Was that studied?

That was not studied,

4

but I think we would be happy to look at

5

patterning on this facade.

6

there.

7

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

8

MR. HARDING:

9

We can't put windows

Understood.

I don't think you'd want

them right into your house, but we can

10

definitely look at both the landscaping and

11

patterning option there.

12
13

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Thank you.

That's

all I've got.

14

MR. GELLER:

15

John, a few questions.

16

about the various iterations and changes that

17

have been made to the project, in particular,

18

trying to address setbacks and downscaling.

19

there any areas where in order to achieve this,

20

you have increased the size or the massing of the

21

building?

22

that this bay that is above the garage door has

23

been pushed closer to Kenwood Street.

24

run through the list of areas in which the

1-800-727-6396

Thank you, Randolph.
One, we saw your schedule

Are

So, for instance, it appears to me

Veritext Legal Solutions

Can you

www.veritext.com

Page 86
1

project has expanded?

2

MR. HARDING:

That's a good question.

3

So this -- for instance, this bay, it looks that

4

way, but we actually pushed this gray area back,

5

and you can kind of see that -- you know, where

6

the balconies were before, and the unit came out

7

here, we were as far out as the face of the bay

8

here, and we just carved in that spot.

9

So I guess further down here some of

10

these bays maybe pushed out a little bit, as

11

we've also pushed back the main face of the

12

building here, but I think a lot of it was we

13

infilled those -- we infilled these balconies

14

first.

15

locations of the massing.

16

instance, if I can get back to -- I want the TJ

17

Maxx view.

18

it like slanted backwards, and it was a little

19

bit bigger where we tried to like smooth that

20

transition out up at the top floor.

21

We've played around with some of the
Like for another

So on this one, like this stepback,

So we've pushed back the ground floors

22

here.

23

back the fifth floor up at this corner, but we've

24

also kind of pushed this, or just flattened it
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out a little bit.

2

of maneuvering of different pieces, but

3

generally, we tried to be pushing in or creating

4

good architectural transitions for any reasons

5

why we might have come out for anything.

6

that answer the question?

7

the -- the exact specific details, but we tried

8

to generally be pushing backwards.

9

So there's been a lot of kind

MR. GELLER:

Does

I don't know all of

On that chart, it would

10

be helpful if we could see where you had made

11

accommodations expanding outward.

12

MR. HARDING:

I think maybe what we

13

probably could do that might be more effective

14

than that is those 3D diagrams where we -- we

15

could probably recreate this for the last scheme

16

and the scheme before that, if that would be

17

helpful.

18
19

MR. GELLER:
helpful.

20
21

Yeah, that would be

MR. HARDING:

Because that really

shows every kind of face around the building.

22

MR. GELLER:

Yeah.

Show me -- if you

23

can go -- why don't you go to the aerial view.

24

think you have an aerial view from the rear of
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the building.

2

overrun is the rectangular box that we're seeing

3

about midpoint on the screen, correct?

4
5

MR. HARDING:

MR. GELLER:

That's where

And the corridor runs

straight down the length; is that correct?

8
9

This here.

So the

the elevator is.

6
7

Yeah, that'll suffice.

MR. HARDING:

Right, roughly

underneath where these cars (?) are.

10

MR. GELLER:

Show me the mockups.

11

When you were asked to show mockups on notched or

12

removed sections on five and six, what did they

13

entail?

14

MR. HARDING:

So roughly taking back

15

to this face here, we carved out -- I can't

16

remember if it was just two or all four -- some

17

distance along this edge.

18

back this area, which made the area further away

19

from Kenwood feel more vertical, if that makes

20

sense.

21

MR. GELLER:

We kind of chopped

I understand what you're

22

saying, and with the removal of that segment,

23

what was the setback to wherever the end wall is

24

there?
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MR. HARDING:

2

it's on that diagram.

3

not on that diagram.

4

Probably 15 or 16 feet.

5
6

Hold on one second.

It's

I don't know the answer.

MR. GELLER:

Did you also play with

the idea of same concept, but the top story only?

7
8

It's roughly -- I think

MR. HARDING:
that, as well.

9

We looked at

That looked even stranger.

MR. GELLER:

10

We did.

MR. HARDING:

Stranger from the view -From Kenwood, looking

11

from Kenwood.

12

kind of level, and then even down from a street

13

level mark, but more from the other angle of the

14

project when we were looking at these changes.

15

So we were kind of looking in this

MR. GELLER:

One other question.

Did

16

you look at a mockup of the removal of leaving

17

the fifth floor, but removal of the sixth floor

18

roughly at the same line, all the way down?

19
20

MR. HARDING:

floor, but leaving the fifth floor?

21
22

So just this whole sixth

MR. GELLER:
floor.

Do you understand my question?

23

MR. HARDING:

24

MR. GELLER:
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sixth floor that runs essentially to the other

2

side of the elevator overrun.

3

MR. HARDING:

Got it.

We did not

4

really look at carving too much from this -- the

5

side furthest from Kenwood.

6

at that.

7

different pieces to see like all right, if we

8

took just the sixth floor off of a piece, like

9

what does that look like, and we saw the fifth

We just didn't look

We were trying to look at a few

10

floor and then -- you saw the fifth floor kind of

11

as a hardline, and then you saw the line behind

12

where the new building face would be, and like

13

those steps were something that was looking

14

strange in proportion and in like -- it drew your

15

eye up there, as opposed to trying to create

16

something that felt seamless and wasn't

17

attracting your eye.

18

So it became more complicated, so you

19

wanted to look at it, which I know is strange.

20

We were having trouble kind of looking at like

21

the layering going on up there as being

22

something that was taking away from trying to

23

create purity.

24

MR. GELLER:
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question of whether a sky plane, if that's the

2

right phrase, is more appropriate as it comes

3

back to the Kenwood Street neighborhood.

4

what I'm trying to figure out.

5

MR. HARDING:

Got you.

That's

I think we

6

looked -- we basically looked at that.

Like if

7

you're saying if we were to take the sixth floor

8

and step it back, we did look at that just in

9

this one portion, and we were looking from the

10

other side.

11

of the view, and we thought that that looked a

12

little bit awkward.

13

that when he gets into his part, if you want him

14

to, as well.

15

no, and like undid it and tried something else.

16

Going off of memory, a lot of that was -- like

17

Maria said, was live.

18

So that was kind of the focal point

I'll let Cliff comment on

I think we did it, and we realized

MR. GELLER:

That's all I have for

19

now.

I want to thank you for your extensive

20

review.

21

interim, I assume we'll go to Cliff at this

22

point.

Maria, if you don't have anything in the

23

MS. MORELLI:

24

MR. GELLER:
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Boehmer, our peer reviewer, to comment on this

2

iteration.

3

MR. BOEHMER:

Can everybody hear me?

4

Well, I'm not quite sure where to start.

That

5

was a long and thorough presentation.

6

maybe I'll start with saying that I think the

7

depiction of how the working sessions went is

8

accurate, and I think it's kind of important in

9

the sense that there certainly was a lot of

I think

10

examination of a lot of different approaches,

11

and it was a very lively and open discussion.

12

I think that -- I presume you all got

13

the memo that I wrote, and maybe, not

14

surprisingly, that was my approach, and the

15

memo, as well, was recounting how the working

16

sessions went, because I think it's important to

17

understand how it got to where it is, and I think

18

that -- I guess I'd have to say that I think

19

there was a comment made that --

20

I think John said that he was a little

21

surprised at my reaction to some of what we see,

22

what you're looking at now, which is what we saw

23

in the last working session.

24

that my report, you know, had some criticism of
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that, and I think what I would say is that I

2

think that's reflective of really not being able

3

to stop thinking about it, and so the -- in my --

4

I still am thinking about it, and the things that

5

I think about at this point are large scale

6

issues, and what was underlined in the first

7

report I wrote back in November, for a

8

presentation in November.

9

For me, there are kind of two big

10

issues related to the urban context, which is

11

where I've started virtually at all of my

12

reviews of all of the proposals in Brookline,

13

and I think that one big one was is it possible

14

to build a six-story building on this site,

15

because it is -- it's a, if not uniquely, close

16

to uniquely situated proposal for what was

17

originally a mixed use six-story building with

18

minimal setback on Harvard Street.

19

So that, to me, was a fundamental

20

question.

21

to do a six-story building.

22

several times, I think, or it was at least

23

implicit in my report, a lot of what happened

24

during those sessions of working on the design
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was continuing to ask that question, what do you

2

need to do, how do you distribute the massing in

3

a way that justifies a building of that scale

4

when nobody else has done it on the street.

5

that's an interesting question, intriguing to

6

every architect I've ever known, and important

7

for the city -- sorry, the town to think about,

8

as well.

9

So

At the same time, while thinking about

10

that question, which is largely a question of

11

massing -- much more about massing than any

12

other aspect of the building.

13

time, an equally important question that

14

certainly I've been struggling with and thinking

15

about, and I know all of you have, is the ground

16

plane and what -- you know, what makes a building

17

fit from the ground plane, and there is no one

18

answer for that.

19

But at the same

That's obvious.

I think the proponent -- I appreciate

20

that they really did do exactly what you asked

21

and went even further as far as analyzing the way

22

that Harvard Street works at ground plane.

23

an important question.

24

behind reactions to whether there should be an
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arcade.

There are very few arcades.

We know one

2

that nobody likes very much, and it's almost

3

across the street from this one, but can that

4

work.

5

So combined with -- so that's a kind

6

of pedestrian experience of it, versus a larger

7

scale fit that you might see from a greater

8

distance.

9

pedestrian experience is the -- your engagement

And finally, tied in with the

10

with that first floor.

11

first ten to 16 feet of that building work.

12

So what -- how does that

John described, I thought in an

13

interesting way, tonight about creating a kind

14

of virtual ceiling that can feel good to a

15

pedestrian.

16

It can be protection.

17

for dramatic lighting, for massive open areas of

18

glass that engage you with what's going on in the

19

interior of the building.

20

is also an extremely important aspect.

21

There are a lot of different ways.
It can be an opportunity

But the ground plane

So where I've gone with this building

22

in a hopelessly analytical way is to peel it

23

apart.

24

looked a lot at -- re-reviewed what happened
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during the working sessions, looking back at the

2

first hearing -- it wasn't your first hearing,

3

but my first hearing back in November -- there

4

was, I think, a universal reaction against the

5

language of the building, which is why I

6

introduced those bullet points about it looking

7

like a prison, and then the neighbors have come

8

up with some interesting nicknames for the

9

building, as well, and it's completely

10

understandable that that reaction is elicited by

11

the language of the building.

12

However -- and I think -- as I said, I

13

think it was very near the beginning of my memo

14

-- I think everybody can agree that the

15

developer really took that to heart and made a

16

very big transition in the language of the

17

building.

18

And the other point that I made in the

19

memo, and the developer also, I think, has made a

20

lot of efforts at manipulating the massing, and

21

that's what Maria and I in realtime watched them

22

struggle with, was that basic problem of how do

23

you make a bigger building fit.

24

I think my belief from the beginning
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has been that in order -- because of the size of

2

the site, you know, the footprint of the site and

3

your ability -- you know, the area you have to

4

work with, I felt, and still do feel, that

5

engagement with the immediate neighbor to the

6

north engaging that building and the composition

7

of this six-story -- or if it's going to be a

8

six-story -- of the new building is really

9

important.

10

Otherwise, I think it just is too

abrupt, basically.

11

I think from a formal perspective, it

12

is too abrupt.

13

mind sharing the screen one more time, John, if

14

you could go back to that view from the TJ Maxx,

15

and what I've come to believe about where we've

16

landed -- and I say "we," because I've watched it

17

happen in realtime -- has been that the -- in

18

order to fix the language of the building, I

19

think it created new issues with how to do the

20

tie-in, how to really successfully -- and we'll

21

stick with the building -- not that one, the one

22

that shows the contrast, John, if you don't mind

23

-- there you go.

24

And I think maybe if you don't

So what I'm trying to say is while I
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understand that the image -- the November 2020

2

design failed in many important ways, for you

3

folks, and I'm sure many of the neighbors, I

4

think if you just look at it strictly from a

5

massing perspective and not focus on the color

6

of the existing building or the color of their

7

building, there was a dramatic corner -- and

8

Maria has mentioned it several times, too --

9

that northeast corner of the building, that

10

eroding of the corner did several things.

11

First, it was a full story lower than

12

the current version, and it also pushed a

13

vertical plane back, virtually the same plane as

14

the neighboring building.

15

way of tying that adjacent building into a

16

larger composition.

17

additional height at the corner site.

18

So it was a dramatic

It helps justify the

And I think if you look at the current

19

design -- I'll just jump into some of my current

20

reactions of where it is at this point.

21

current design, because it did infill those

22

areas and did wind up at -- go up another story

23

in that bay element, which was a good move, I

24

think the idea of kind of book-ending, creating
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a bookend to that existing building and then

2

creating the similar piece around on the

3

southwest side, as well, was a smart thing to

4

study, but I do think it created an issue of

5

maybe losing a bit of the effectiveness of that

6

tie-in of making the larger composition.

7

Similarly, on the -- but at the same

8

time, I don't in any way want to diminish the

9

progress that was made in the language of the

10

building, which I think probably more people

11

will think fits in to the context more

12

effectively than the original version.

13

So in my mind, as far as a massing and

14

a tie-in and just find the six-story building

15

way of thinking, I think we lost a little bit on

16

this elevation, and I only realized it the more

17

I've looked at it actually following that

18

session we had on the 5th of February.

19

there's a little bit of work.

20

that it's as simple as losing a level on there.

21

So to me,

And it's possible

It creates other issues, as any design

22

change does.

23

problems you've created.

24

it doesn't make sense to have such erratically
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different type of brick from the existing

2

building.

3

an area that still requires study.

4

I'm not really sure, but to me, it's

The other areas that I cited in my

5

report from the massing perspective that I think

6

still needs some work -- and this is after that

7

session on the 5th, where I think John

8

accurately reported his description of the kind

9

of awkwardness -- maybe, John, if you wouldn't

10

mind flipping to that southwest corner again, I

11

think any of those views.

12

John did accurately describe the

13

exercise of looking at various ways of carving

14

that back more.

15

agreed worked, with the exception of the

16

comments that two of you made tonight about the

17

nature of that first floor -- because when we

18

talk about ground plane, the ground plane isn't

19

just along Harvard Street or along Kenwood

20

Street, it's also for the neighbor.

21

Because what I think we all

You know, the neighbor has a ground

22

plane that they're looking at, too, and that

23

isn't defined.

24

We don't know about gas meters, where bicycles
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are hanging, you know, any number of things that

2

actually are going to be very important for the

3

neighbor.

4

out their first-floor windows.

5

That's what they see when they look

But in any case, on this elevation, it

6

was the last elevation that the design team took

7

on to work on, and I think the notion of wrapping

8

that fourth floor around is effective.

9

pointed out in my report, whether it should be

As I

10

dark gray, there's a side of me that believes

11

it's close enough -- most of the rooms (?) are

12

close enough that maybe the need to break up the

13

massing or create interest doesn't need to be

14

done so much with materiality that I think it

15

might be worth looking at all of the -- where

16

that gray area is, perhaps be brick that wraps

17

all the way around possibly.

18

building does have a bit of a disjointed feeling

19

to it because of the kind of erratically

20

different appearance of the three main

21

materials.

22

I think the

But in any case, I think the fourth

23

story with the bays wrapping around is

24

effective, but I think I'm at the point of
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believing that the stepbacks on this level --

2

it's now the fourth and fifth floors -- or sorry,

3

the fifth and sixth floors that aren't quite

4

working for me, and I think it's a combination of

5

the stepbacks at that level that I think would

6

improve if those were increased stepbacks.

7

I think I'm just still engaged in that

8

process of knowing that the way that you study

9

things is you make moves, see the new problem to

10

create it for yourself, and then reevaluate what

11

the next step is.

12

big picture view, is that I do remain convinced

13

that it is possible to do a six-story building on

14

this site.

15

So I think that's kind of my

The rules that I set up for it a while

16

back, and as I've reviewed how this design has

17

changed, I still believe in those.

18

does need a bigger engagement in order to work

19

effectively on the site, and I do believe that --

20

I think there is a possibility -- and I don't

21

know because I haven't worked the model myself

22

-- I do think there's a possibility that the only

23

way to make a six-story building work on this

24

site would be to lose some of the massing on the
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upper two levels.

2

That leaves other issues.

Maria

3

mentioned, you know, the problems of proportions

4

with two stories on top of four stories,

5

particularly when it's really accentuated, as it

6

is in this design.

7

top heavy.

8

respect to that.

9

personal opinion, believe it is possible, and I

The building can tend to look

So there are things to work on with
But I think I do, in my own

10

do think that the recognition of where to make

11

the articulation work, I think particularly on

12

the west side, is correct.

13

northeast side I think still needs work.

14

I think on the -- the

I do want to list off a couple other

15

thoughts that are more on a detail level.

16

of them actually came up tonight from -- several

17

of you I think feel the same way.

18

mentioned studying that bay, which, again, I do

19

think was a good move.

20

corner of the building was smart, but I think it

21

may be too big at this point to really work

22

effectively to make that kind of tie-in.

23
24

Some

I already

The bay on the northeast

I already mentioned that I think the
westside stepback on the top two floors could
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use some work.

I already mentioned looking at --

2

I think kind of what set off this thought was

3

that -- I think kind of a general principle is

4

once you get close to having the massing work

5

effectively, you need fewer kind of superficial

6

moves to make.

7

breaking down the massing on a big blocky

8

building where you don't really want to lose a

9

lot of volume, you use very superficial moves.

I think a traditional approach to

10

But I think as you move closer to having the

11

massing working, I think you can take a less kind

12

of disintegrated look at the building.

13

Another important point, and it's

14

something that does need to be developed in

15

detail, that I heard reinforced tonight is that

16

first-floor wall on the west side.

17

appreciate the questions that were asked about

18

maximizing glazing in some of the blank walls,

19

although I do appreciate that the proximity to

20

the neighbor to the north, I think that is a

21

respectful gesture to leave those walls blank.

22

What else.

I also

This one I'm not sure

23

people will agree with me, but the street views

24

that I look at from the north is -- relative to
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the arcade on the building, I think if the arcade

2

-- there you go -- yeah, there you go.

3

think the depth of the arcade is a bit shallow.

4

I think it's a little tall and narrow to be

5

adequately engaging.

6

To me, I

I think having the step is a very

7

detail oriented observation, but I think the --

8

I do think the arcade can work.

9

argument -- which is why I made the distinction

I think the

10

between working with the massing of a building

11

versus with the way a building engages at the

12

ground plane.

13

actually think that the depth of the arcade

14

should be a bit deeper to fix the proportions of

15

it so it's less tall and narrow.

16

I do think this can work, but I

Otherwise, I think I just do want to

17

verify that the developer's engagement at the

18

working sessions was sincere, I think, and if

19

anything I would say put a kind of cap on the

20

ability to make some more radical moves with

21

respect to -- certainly on the massing side,

22

that there certainly was a feeling that the

23

developer had it in their head that there was,

24

you know, so many cubic feet of volume that they
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wanted to retain.

2

repeat that in my opinion, I think it is possible

3

that to really keep working at this to make it

4

really effective, it may be possible to have to

5

let go on that a bit and lose some of the volume.

6

And again, I guess I'd just

You know, I have to say that it's --

7

because of the kind of really hands on

8

engagement that we've had, it feels -- it still

9

feels to me like a work in progress, but I've

10

seen a lot of sincere interest in pushing the

11

building into something that everybody is happy

12

with.

13

thought a lot about it.

14

So I'm certainly open for questions.

MR. GELLER:

I've

Thank you, Cliff.

15

Johanna, do you have questions or thoughts for

16

Cliff?

17

Questions, mostly.
MS. SCHNEIDER:

No.

Cliff, thank you.

18

That was a really helpful summary of your

19

thoughts, and I agree with many of the points

20

that you raised.

So thanks.

21

MR. GELLER:

22

MS. POVERMAN:

Great.

Thank you.

I also agree.

Kate.

I think

23

especially something which had struck me was the

24

starkness of the gray color in contrast to the
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rest of the building, but I agree with Cliff's

2

comments.

3

at some point for three minutes at an

4

appropriate time?

5
6

Additionally, could we take a break

MR. GELLER:

After Randolph, yes.

Randolph.

7

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Thanks.

Cliff, just

8

one question -- and I'm going to try not to get

9

too far into comments, which I know we're going

10

to do in a minute -- but, you know, I appreciated

11

the way you were talking about pushing the mass

12

of the building around, and, you know, that's

13

been an evolution, you know, the balconies get

14

filled, and the bays come out, things like that.

15

And one thing that the company that

16

has been -- there have been material changes

17

that have followed, you know, the color of the

18

brick becomes lighter or, you know, some other,

19

you know, color or material and color changes on

20

the secondary pieces.

21

And one of the ones that's most

22

striking to me, I just want to ask you about it

23

because, you know, we've been talking a lot

24

about the horizontal lines through the building,
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you know, the high stepbacks and the arcade and

2

things like that.

3

of the things I noticed the most is -- and maybe

4

we could have this slide.

5

But in the current design, one

On the elevation facing Kenwood

6

Street, for the first time, there's kind of a

7

vertical line down the middle of the building --

8

there, thank you -- it's almost like two

9

buildings pushed up against one another.

It's

10

quite a contrast.

11

extent that came up in any of your working

12

meetings or if you reacted to it in other ways,

13

can you share some thoughts about it?

14

Can you talk about -- to the

MR. BOEHMER:

Well, I agree with you,

15

Randolph.

16

awkwardly and dry-throatedly trying to say, is

17

that I think -- well, let me put it this way.

18

think that the reason -- and this is my own

19

interpretation, and John is the person who did

20

it, not me, so he knows the real answer -- but I

21

think that the change that happened on the west

22

elevation, which was pretty significant -- the

23

west elevation used to have these long vertical

24

flow building height stripes that really just
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accentuated the height of the building and did

2

very little to help tie it in from a scale

3

perspective and really lacked any kind of

4

detailing that related to the smaller scale

5

residential buildings on Kenwood.

6

So I think what we're looking at now

7

is a kind of residual desire to really make sure

8

that you know about this four-story move that

9

goes around the corner and travels down the west

10

side, which is -- and that's kind of what I meant

11

by this kind of disintegration of the building.

12

It's a little -- maybe a little too

13

diagrammatic.

14

You can read what was trying to happen

15

behind it.

16

strong four-story reading on the west side of

17

the building, and that, to me, works.

18

agree it tends to look -- you know, it doesn't

19

help the coherency of the overall reading of the

20

building.

21

about?

22

The underlying idea was to create a

But I do

Is that what you were kind of asking

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Yes, and just one

23

more piece to this.

24

elevation -- and I really appreciate your
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comments about the west side and the way that

2

that has progressed, but looking out at this

3

south elevation as an elevation of a single new

4

building, do you think that it still needs some

5

work and development?

6

MR. BOEHMER:

7

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

8

MR. BOEHMER:

9

appreciate that.

I do.
That's fine for now.

Yeah, I do, and I

But again, I will say that I

10

would have to classify that as an emerging

11

thought, because I think it's taken a while to

12

kind of process the more kind of analytical

13

moves that have been made to address specific

14

concerns.

15

So I'm no longer convinced that we

16

need a dark gray element.

17

it came from.

18

versions had a whole different reason, I think,

19

for using the different kind of language in the

20

balcony areas and the sort of areas that looked

21

like steel and more industrial looks, but I

22

think it's getting close enough with the other

23

aspects of the building that I don't find it to

24

be a critical contributor anymore to the
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interest or coherence, as I said, to the

2

building.

3

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

4

MR. GELLER:

5

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

6

Is that it, Randolph?
Yes.

Thanks, Jesse.

Sorry, I am done for now.

7
8

Thanks.

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

We're going

to take a five-minute break.

9

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

10

MR. GELLER:

So we are reopening this

11

meeting.

12

Cliff, and I think at this point, we're going to

13

see whether there are members of the public who

14

want to offer testimony.

15

anyone who wants to offer testimony.

16

many -- do we have a long cue?

17

We closed out panelist questions to

MS. MORELLI:

We will start with
Well, how

No, I have five people.

18

I've just promoted Lee Biernbaum.

19

MR. GELLER:

Before you start, let me

20

just -- and I know this is repetitive.

21

ask that testimony focus on the subject of this

22

evening's hearing.

23

offers testimony start by giving us your name

24

and your address, speak loudly, clearly.
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please proceed.

2

MR. BIERNBAUM:

Hello.

My name is Lee

3

Biernbaum.

4

across from the proposed development.

5

say that this whole experience has been

6

shameful.

7

law can be used and abused to diminish and delay

8

a qualified affordable housing project under 40B

9

is tragic.

10

I live at 7 Verndale Street, just
I want to

The fact that our anti-stop zoning

Through the continued complaint and

11

delay, opponents of our very urban environment,

12

opponents of housing, have picked and picked.

13

They've picked away 17 percent of the housing.

14

They've paradoxically complained about traffic

15

to justify more parking is by sitting on top of a

16

bus stop.

17

There have been setbacks upon setbacks

18

until having a replacement restaurant into

19

retail space became unviable.

20

compared this building to the dark tower,

21

literally referring to it as evil.

22

picked and picked until this project is on the

23

edge of being impossible to profitably build.

24

This is the reason we have the 40B
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anti-stop zoning law.

2

have chosen to say you are not welcome to five

3

families.

4

welcoming more unnecessary cars to Brookline.

5

I'm disappointed that I will no longer have a

6

restaurant so close by for those nights when a

7

hot cup of soup is really all I want, whether it

8

be matzo ball or lentil or whatever else over the

9

years.

10

I am disappointed that we

I'm disappointed that we are

This project is still far, far, far

11

better than no project.

12

We need more affordable housing.

13

market rate housing.

14

Please approve this, and get it moving so that we

15

can get busy welcoming our new neighbors to this

16

neighborhood.

17
18

We need more housing.
We need more

We need this project.

Thank you.

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

Who do we have

next, Maria?

19

MS. MORELLI:

20

Masso.

21

second.

22

Yes, we have Michael

I'm going to promote him in just a
Mr. Masso, here you go.
MR. MASO:

Hi there.

Thank you.

I

23

will start by also endorsing the notion of the

24

40B process and certainly accepting and
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endorsing the fact that there's going to be a

2

building and welcoming our new neighbors,

3

whoever they are.

4

My name is Michael Maso.

I live at 12

5

Kenwood Street, which is directly across from

6

the building, across from 15 and just catty-

7

corner.

8

point of view of the side of the building is

9

taken.

10

Ours is one of the angles from which the

You know, I want to start just by

11

acknowledging that I do think that there have

12

been improvements in design over the period of

13

the last company of months.

14

bay windows help; to me, the articulation and

15

some of the setbacks, modest though they seem to

16

me, have made a building which is friendlier.

You know, to me, the

17

But I do think that what I am hearing

18

is a process where we are running out the clock.

19

The charge of the ZBA was that the building was

20

too big.

21

big.

22

last time, it is still six stories.

23

know, I don't have a lot of faith, but for the

24

record, I would simply continue to oppose the
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building at this scale.

2

Kenwood Street and is wrong for it.

3

I believe it overwhelms

And I only ask the question -- I think

4

there is resistance on the part of -- at least

5

what I've heard over the past two years, and yes,

6

it's been two years, and we've all been here.

7

certainly share that concern.

8

to get the modicum of design changes that we've

9

gotten is not indicative of a process that seems

I think two years

10

that it's going to be successful, because there

11

is an utter reluctance to lower the size of the

12

piece of the building to a way that would

13

eliminate that extra floor.

14

I

And so I do ask a question.

I don't

15

expect -- I suppose it's rhetorical.

16

hearing that rejection of the project is

17

something that, understandably, this board

18

doesn't want to do.

19

helpful for us to hear -- aside from the fact

20

that, of course, we all want a successful

21

project, but if, in fact, there isn't any more

22

movement on the size -- on the massing, on the

23

size and of the floors of the building, why is it

24

better -- what is keeping the board from the
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option of actually saying no?

2

I understand the state might override

3

it, but certainly -- and certainly that's a

4

possibility, and maybe the building will happen

5

anyway.

6

neighbors, to understand the reluctance that at

7

least we perceive -- and maybe that's misguided

8

-- the reluctance of the board at the end of the

9

day to say no.

But it would be useful for us, the

So thank you.

10

MR. GELLER:

11

MS. MORELLI:

Thank you.
I'm going to promote

12

Vinca Jarrett.

13

you can unmute and share your video.

14
15

Ms. Jarrett, when you're ready,

MS. JARRETT:

I'm not sure how to do

the video here.

16

MS. MORELLI:

The bottom ribbon.

17

MS. JARRETT:

I see it, I see it.

18

Hello everybody.

My name is Vinca Jarrett.

19

an attorney that lives in the neighborhood.

20

live at 160 Thorndike Street.

21

particular voting district.

I'm
I

I am part of this

22

I've lived here for 33 years, and I

23

feel like they're trying to change the face of

24

Harvard Street.
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involved in the last two iterations.

2

think the presenter tonight, John Harding, I

3

think it was, did a wonderful job showing us how

4

they've improved the light and the colors.

5

thought they did a great job.

6

the brick darker.

7

I actually

I

I'd like to see

I'm not opposed to developing the

8

area.

I am very opposed to changing the concept

9

of what Harvard Street has become and is

10

continuing to become as a place for commercial

11

storefronts and restaurants.

12

should have a restaurant in the bottom.

13

understand how we've gone from this gigantic

14

residential to this still gigantic residential,

15

but managed to take out the entire first floor of

16

commercial real estate and all blamed on Covid.

17

It's like the entire presentation is

I agree that we
I don't

18

about what we have to do because we live in a

19

Covid world now, and I don't think this is going

20

to be forever.

21

vaccinated, and maybe it will be a year, maybe it

22

will be two years, maybe we'll still be masked,

23

maybe we won't be, but we will be going back to

24

restaurants, and we will be shopping again and
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doing all those things.

2

So making a building for the short

3

term all about Covid is the silliest and

4

stupidest and most short-sighted thing that I've

5

ever heard in my life, and I am absolutely

6

shocked and appalled by that as someone that

7

lives in this neighborhood.

8

It's one thing to say yes, we want to

9

have better airflow.

We should build our

10

buildings like that.

That's been a problem long

11

before Covid, and I'm glad that buildings are

12

considering all of those things.

13

that I want to build a building so nobody has to

14

ever leave it or socialize with other people --

15

they can use their health club, and they can stay

16

in their own building and get stuff delivered in

17

a Covid world to make it attractive for the next

18

18 months -- that's very, very short-sighted,

19

and I completely oppose that concept.

20

But saying

I can live with the height of the

21

building.

22

with the previous speaker that it's a little too

23

high, but I could probably live with that.

24

world changes and cities grow, but I don't think
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the cities grow into massive apartment buildings

2

without having restaurants and stores and really

3

considering that this is a business district

4

that they're building in.

5

Thank you for listening.

6

I appreciate it.

MS. MORELLI:

7

promoting Matti Klock.

8

your video, Matti.

9

MS. KLOCK:

10

MS. MORELLI:

11

MS. KLOCK:

So that's my take.

I'm going to be
You can unmute and share

Hi.

Am I audible?

Yes.
Awesome.

My name is Matti

12

Klock.

13

across from the development, pointing to it

14

illustratively out my window.

15

that units in this building have been lost.

16

like the previous speaker, I'm sad that the

17

retail is gone, but I do -- I think the design is

18

beautiful, and I want to see it built.

19

height is fine with me.

20

I live at 5 Verndale Street, so right

Like Lee, I am sad
Just

The

I'm actually really excited about

21

having narrower setbacks.

22

Harvard Street that has low setbacks, like down

23

by the Tatte.

24

think this building would be a great addition to
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the neighborhood, which this section of Harvard

2

Street actually feels pretty empty to me, like

3

it has a lot of parking lots.

4

building completely.

5

have built it.

I will be proud once we

Thank you.

6

MR. GELLER:

7

MS. MORELLI:

Thank you.

8

promoting Vitaly Veksler.

9

unmute.

10

So I support this

I'm going to be
Mr. Veksler, you can

There you go.
MR. VEKSLER:

Thank you very much for

11

this conversation.

12

Harding worked hard on this, but I still

13

disagree with the size of this building.

14

I have to admit that John

We talked before about traffic moving

15

in the wrong direction.

16

the petition to limit the size to three floors.

17

We can probably live with four floors, but when

18

you put this six-story building -- Mr. Cliff

19

Boehmer talked theoretical that this building

20

can be fit into this small base.

21

theory.

22

graduated from a college.

23

in this business for a while, and he hasn't seen

24

anything like this.
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So for us, you know, the analogy that

2

would be used here is you -- the developers got a

3

uniform -- football uniform for a 10-year-old

4

boy, and they tried to fit it on Rob Gronkowski

5

before the game.

6

work.

7

most people -- 99 percent of neighbors here

8

don't like this, 99 percent of people who have

9

kids who live here for years and years and years.

I don't know whether it would

You know, honestly, I don't think that

10

And one of the little things, once

11

again, the developers or the team of architects

12

didn't put an important detail on this map,

13

maybe because they don't live here.

14

bus stop -- 66 bus stop in front of this

15

building.

16

time, there are some number of people.

17

they are homeless people.

There was a

So there are people there.

All the
Often

18

So you have to -- when you try to

19

narrow the setbacks, there is no way to pass

20

around them.

21

but for my wife who goes there, that was a

22

problem, you know, when these people become

23

belligerent, you know, and when you have -- on

24

both sides of Harvard you have these very narrow
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1

setbacks in this area -- right in front of the TJ

2

Maxx, they have one near the wine store.

3

a practice of living here.

4

That's

It's not just theory.

You know, we aren't supporting.

You

5

know, if this building were three or four

6

stories high, you know, as the zoning

7

regulations permit, nobody would be going after

8

this.

9

sessions, you know, discussing this building,

You know, like we would not have this long

10

but it's just giant.

11

giant building, something that doesn't fit, in

12

this base, you know, and you're trying to, you

13

know, change colors, you know, change designs.

14

You're trying to put a

You know, I'm sorry, you create a lot

15

of problems with this, and unfortunately, we

16

will bear the costs, where the developers will

17

get all the benefits.

18

your time.

Thank you very much for

I appreciate it.

19

MS. MORELLI:

20

MR. GELLER:

21

MS. MORELLI:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you very much.
I'm going to be

22

promoting Judith Vanderkay.

23

Vanderkay, you can unmute and share your video.

24

MS. VANDERKAY:
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mind, I don't share my video.

2

the bandwidth so you can actually hear me.

3

Judith Vanderkay.

4

which is a couple of blocks away from this site.

5

I want to preserve
I'm

I live on Columbia Street,

I thank the architect for going into

6

so much detail about all of the work that he's

7

put into this project, but I have to agree with

8

the last speaker that it is still way too big,

9

and unfortunately, some of the changes are like

10

putting lipstick on a pig.

11

It is work.

You can point to it as

12

something that was accomplished, but it really

13

doesn't change the situation very much.

14

building is still twice the size it should be for

15

that site, twice the size of anything in the

16

vicinity.

17

neighborhood are just the most minor ill effect

18

of the size of this building.

19

The

The shadows it's going to cast on the

I'm not going to restate all the

20

things that people have already said, but one

21

thing stuck out to me, that this project is using

22

the other 40Bs in the neighborhood that have

23

been crammed down our throats as reason to go

24

big, go industrial.
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very least, and really got my back up to compare

2

the awful fortress at 420 Harvard as something

3

that is desirable.

4

I really think they can do better.

I

5

think it looks like three little buildings stuck

6

together.

7

looked like a building that was missing its top.

8

I'm sure it's functional.

9

engineering functional -- I don't know the right

From one angle, it seemed to me it

I'm sure it's

10

words -- but aesthetically, it's not as good as

11

it could be, and basically, it's just twice the

12

size.

Thank you.

13

MR. GELLER:

14

MS. MORELLI:

15

people.

16

Ms. Shatz.

17

Thank you.
We have three more

I'm going to be promoting Lisa Shatz.

MS. SHATZ:

One second.

I'm Lisa

18

Shatz.

19

project because we are suffering from a housing

20

shortage in our area.

21

to live in Brookline at all.

22

I live on Summit Avenue.

Hi.

I support this

Young people can't afford

I think six stories is a perfect size

23

for the height of the building.

24

want restaurants and retail on the lower floor,
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and that, to me, is what Harvard Street is all

2

about, and I think Brookline should be all about

3

diversity and all about having -- all different

4

kinds of people live in Brookline, and I think

5

this kind of building would allow people of

6

different income levels to live in Brookline,

7

and I think diversity is of income levels and of

8

other sorts, too, and it could promote racial

9

diversity, as well, if there are more affordable

10

units there.

11

So I do support this.

And my daughter

12

lives in Harvard Square.

13

Harvard Street, and it's beautiful, and she

14

loves it.

15

enhance the neighborhood.

16

have evidence of nebbyism (?) here when

17

neighbors speak and say neighbors should decide.

18

If neighbors decide, then you won't have any

19

other new neighbors who have no voice in this

20

decision making process of building.

21

makes it harder to have new neighbors when

22

Brookline is so unaffordable.

23
24

It is denser than

And I think this building could
And also, I think we

So it

So I think the architect did a
wonderful job, and I am sorry that they did get
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rid of some units.

But yeah, it looks like a

2

beautiful building to me that will enhance the

3

neighborhood, although I would like to see

4

retail and restaurants on the first floor.

5

Thank you.

6

MR. GELLER:

7

MS. MORELLI:

8

Gallimore.

9

unmute.

Thank you.
I'm promoting Joanna

Joanna, if you can hear me, you can

While we're waiting for Joanna, I am

10

going to promote Richard Hassman.

11

if you can hear me, you can unmute.

12

MR. HASSMAN:

Hi.

Mr. Hassman,

I live on Thorndike

13

Street, right down the street from, one of the

14

previous speakers mentioned, the big monstrosity

15

on the corner at 420.

16

I am a real estate agent in Brookline.

17

Part of what I love about this town is the charm,

18

the profile of the architecture, the design

19

style.

20

building with X number of units.

21

really oppose the size of it.

22

So for me, I don't have a problem with a
I don't even

My concern is that we're getting just

23

another building that looks like an industrial

24

design building, like we're seeing going up
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everywhere that basically ruins the character of

2

the towns that allow for all of these new types

3

of developments.

4

buildings built in other cities.

5

fabulous ones in Salem and Lynn that maintain

6

the old character from the early 20th century

7

but with new designs.

8

looks like, you know, an industrial Lego set

9

building.

10

I've seen condos and apartment
I've seen some

And so for me, this just

And as some of the other speakers

11

said, I think it's an absolute shame not to have

12

retail and restaurants.

13

happening to the proprietors of Shanna Quinob

14

(?), but, you know, just to not have at least

15

one, if not more, opportunities for local

16

businesses to be in the space there I think is a

17

big shame.

18

I don't know what's

But really, my biggest concern is that

19

we're getting another one of these -- you know,

20

look, Mr. Harding, your firm did a lot of nice

21

work.

22

adjustments.

23

Brookline resident, it looks like another cookie

24

cutter modern industrial design, which, to me,
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does not fit the profile of our lovely town of

2

Brookline.

Thank you.

3

MR. GELLER:

4

MS. MORELLI:

Those are my comments.
Thank you.
Ms. Gallimore, are you

5

able to unmute?

There's a ribbon at the button.

6

You can find that ribbon and unmute.

7

MS. GALLIMORE:

Sorry.

You know,

8

well, I just -- I do want to say that I

9

definitely support affordable housing, and I

10

know people in this neighborhood do.

11

multiple 40Bs nearby that shows that we

12

definitely have -- you know, have done a lot for

13

affordable housing so far, and we're also a

14

multi-family neighborhood, and we've always

15

been, and with many accessory apartments, and I

16

think this neighborhood of North Brookline has

17

really been the affordable area for a very long

18

time.

19

We have

So I have a problem because I think

20

that this developer has basically -- he's taken

21

advantage of this 40B process.

22

respect the 40B process, but I think this

23

developer, in particular, has really taken

24

advantage of it.
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but I think he has shown that in his

2

conversations to the ZBA and his conversations

3

to the transportation board and in the

4

conversations to the neighbors who attend these

5

meetings.

6

I feel that this building --

7

especially when you look from the TJ Maxx point

8

of view, you can really see that this building is

9

quite top heavy.

To me, it almost looks like a

10

growth or a mushroom, and I don't think they

11

probably really can make it look terribly like a

12

good building.

13

lot, and I think, as you say, this architect has

14

spent a long time trying to make it fit, but he

15

hasn't been able to.

16

I do think it's too big for the

I think that -- obviously, I disagree.

17

I could see just chopping off that sixth floor.

18

I think it would improve it immensely, and I

19

could see setbacks, especially for the Kenmore

20

Street neighbors (inaudible) for the fifth floor

21

would definitely improve this building.

22

really can't understand why people say it makes

23

it look worse to cut off a floor.

24

maybe they have to tweak the outer part of the
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building, but that just doesn't ring true to me.

2

And I would just say, you know, he had

3

a very long involved presentation, but just

4

saying things don't make them true, and I think

5

that -- I could say that about your

6

presentation, and I could say it about what the

7

developer presents to this board.

8
9

The floor to ceiling windows,
especially on his other building, when I walk by

10

it, it looks like a car showroom at Herb

11

Chambers.

12

make a pedestrian feel happy, as perhaps the

13

architect was talking about.

14

They're too large.

They just don't

You know, I think the buildings -- the

15

glass on this building is -- they're too large

16

for the area.

17

modern things, but it -- I don't think I'd like

18

to be behind those windows.

19

It's an incredibly busy street, and to be

20

somebody -- to feel so exposed to what goes on at

21

Harvard Street, I wouldn't like it as a

22

resident, or even as a storefront.

23
24

They just don't blend in.

I like

You're too exposed.

I wonder if his storefront -- his
other 40B was not successful.
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Covid.

I think it was rented -- not rented

2

before Covid.

3

windows sort of limit, maybe people -- you know,

4

maybe what type of business might want to go in

5

there.

6

Because the floor to ceiling

Again, you know, this -- I wish that

7

he would consider -- we discussed why there's

8

not retail.

9

and I guess Covid probably is the primary reason

We had big discussions about that,

10

maybe, but, you know, I could see residential

11

going in on the first floor.

12

be a crazy thought, but what about two

13

apartments with their own separate entrances to

14

Harvard Street.

15

I know this might

I personally think first floor

16

separate entrance apartments are very desirable.

17

And also, if he pulls back the -- gets rid of the

18

sixth floor and he pulls in the fifth floor, he

19

could put, perhaps, some type of roof deck,

20

which would be a common space for the residents,

21

especially in Covid.

22

developers are putting -- getting rid of indoor

23

common space and putting outdoor common space.

24

So I guess I agree with what people say, and I
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think that's all I can say.

2
3

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

Maria,

anybody else?

4
5

Thank you.

MS. MORELLI:

That's it.

We have no

one in the cue.

6

MR. GELLER:

7

for their testimony.

8

think.

9

you with us?

I want to thank everyone
I want to jump order, I

I see we still have Judi here.

10

MS. BARRETT:

11

MR. GELLER:

Judi, are

Yes, I'm here.
So Judi Barrett is our

12

consultant on matters under MGL Chapter 40B,

13

specific to this case, but also on other cases.

14

And Judi, I was hoping you could -- I don't know

15

if you heard the question that was raised by one

16

of the members of the community concerning the

17

constraints on the board in its decision making.

18

MS. BARRETT:

So I joined you about

19

8:30.

20

I've heard most of what -- you know, since I've

21

been on.

22

I had been at another meeting before that.

MR. GELLER:

There was a question, a

23

perceived sense that the board was hesitant to

24

simply say no.
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MS. BARRETT:

Oh, okay.

So we have

2

talked about this before.

3

options under Chapter 40B.

4

project as proposed, which I've never seen

5

happen; you can approve a project with

6

conditions, which is what the board has had, you

7

know, really a long line of successful

8

experience with; and you can deny.

9

The board has three
You can approve a

If you are under the ten percent

10

statutory minimum under Chapter 40B, and you

11

deny the project or you approve it with

12

conditions to which the developer objects, the

13

developer has the option to go and appeal to the

14

housing appeals committee, which is a state

15

entity.

16

appellate jurisdiction for an aggrieved

17

developer.

18

It's not a court, but it has specific

So if the abutters aren't happy, they

19

go to court, but the developer can go to the

20

housing appeals committee.

21

upholding the board's decision for a denial is

22

high.

23

percent, because what the board has to do in

24

making any decision on any comprehensive permit

1-800-727-6396

And the standard for

It's a tough hurdle when you're under ten

Veritext Legal Solutions

www.veritext.com

Page 134
1

is balance the regional need for affordable

2

housing against local concerns that are

3

identified in the statute, and those local

4

concerns include public safety, public health,

5

design -- building and site design,

6

environmental impact.

7

There is a recognition in the statute

8

for conflicts with local planning.

9

need that.

You won't

I can explain it more, but it doesn't

10

apply in this case.

11

looking at is design, public health, public

12

safety and so forth, and your burden is to show

13

if you're denied that the local concern that led

14

you to do that is more important than the

15

regional need for affordable housing.

16

So really what you're

The reason that's such a high bar is

17

that the whole point of the statute is to address

18

regional housing needs, especially in suburban

19

communities.

20

that you won't prevail, but I don't think that's

21

ever a reason to just accept a project that,

22

through no amount of condition, that you can

23

make a project that you think is good for your

24

community.
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So much of the board's history with

2

Chapter 40B, at least in the time I've been

3

working with you, is how to arrive at a better

4

project, a project that you feel is good for

5

Brookline, good for the neighborhood, and

6

clearly good for affordable housing.

7

And so much of the conversation has

8

been around are there opportunities to mitigate

9

an aspect of a project that the board finds

10

objectionable, that the board -- you know, it

11

elevates to the level of a local concern that

12

would persuade the board perhaps to say no.

13

throughout my time with you, there's always sort

14

of been a way to think about a mitigation

15

opportunity that will get the developer where

16

the developer needs to go financially and the

17

town in terms of working toward ten percent.

18

And

You have to decide where you are in

19

that mix with this project.

20

make this better from the town's perspective

21

that the developer perhaps has not explored yet.

22

Are there conditions you could impose on the

23

project that would address your local concerns

24

and still give the developer an economically
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feasible project.

2

options.

3

You know, those are your

MR. GELLER:

Thank you, Judi.

And

4

just to be clear, if the board denies an out and

5

out denial, and HAC finds against the board, it

6

is an approved project without condition?

7

MS. BARRETT:

Yes.

In the few cases

8

I've been involved with, yes, it is simply a --

9

issuance was directed to issue the comprehensive

10

permit that the applicant has applied for.

11

MR. GELLER:

And to add further

12

flavor, as I'm focused on the question, on the

13

cases that I have experienced, and I suspect all

14

of the cases that you've experienced, where the

15

board approves with conditions, the conditions

16

are lengthy and numerous --

17

MS. BARRETT:

18

MR. GELLER:

19

-- and are quite

detailed --

20

MS. BARRETT:

21

MR. GELLER:

22

Yes.

Yes.
-- so that that degree of

control is not insignificant?

23

MS. BARRETT:

24

MR. GELLER:
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MS. BARRETT:

2

MR. GELLER:

3

You're welcome.
Hopefully, that is

responsive.

4

MS. SCHNEIDER:

And that control in

5

those conditions can disappear in the event that

6

a dissatisfied applicant successfully appeals to

7

the HAC?

8
9

MS. BARRETT:
always the risk.

That's the risk.

That's

So it's why you need to be so

10

confident that those local concerns persuade you

11

to take that risk.

12

it that you may end up with something you really

13

don't like, because all the effort you would put

14

in to trying to negotiate a better project may go

15

down the tubes.

16

to be convinced that those local concerns and

17

whatever the case may be that those outweigh the

18

original need for affordable housing, and will

19

you go to the map for that.

You've got to know going into

So that's why you've really got

20

MR. GELLER:

21

MS. BARRETT:

22

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.
You're welcome.
So board members, as

23

we've done in the past -- first of all, I

24

apologize for the late hour, even though I don't
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take responsibility for it.

2

opportunity, our obligation to offer comment and

3

direction to the developer and see the response

4

of the developer to that comment.

5

think, with Randolph this time.

6

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

It's our

Let's start, I

Jesse, do you care

7

particularly whether we do this with visuals, or

8

we could also just try to have a discussion, you

9

know, as a conversation without jumping around

10

in the slide show?

11

Do you have a preference?

MR. GELLER:

Clarity is my preference.

12

I want a coherent, clear direction to the

13

developer.

14

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

I'm going to try it

15

just in conversation, then.

16

architect and the petitioner, if these comments

17

are unclear, then let's go to images.

18

MR. GELLER:

19

MR. MEIKLEJOHN:

Especially for the

That's fine.
I want to start with

20

just connecting with one of the issues in

21

Cliff's review, and especially his comments

22

tonight, which -- much of which addressed the

23

question of where is the mass of the building.

24

And as others have said, it was very helpful to
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have the architect's diagrams of, you know, what

2

happened to the mass, you know, eaten away here

3

and protecting here and so on.

4

And the reason I'm starting with this

5

is that, you know, as we go through this process,

6

I'm more convinced, and I think especially in

7

seeing the design as it's evolved tonight, that

8

that's one of the most important ways to fit the

9

building into its two- or three-sided

10

environment, however many different, but, you

11

know, we've all -- Harvard, Kenwood, the

12

adjacent building -- the adjacent residence on

13

Kenwood.

14

And I think the thing that runs

15

through a lot of my comments is -- what I'm

16

trying to do is look at mass first, and then at

17

details, materials, and colors later.

18

Overall, what I want to say about

19

what's happened with the mass, you know, where

20

it is and how pieces of it are articulated, is

21

that I think the bay bookend strategy, if I can

22

call it that, that has, you know, one bay on

23

Harvard Street next to the 514 building and a

24

different kind of bay, a little shorter and
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different materials rounding the corner onto

2

Kenwood, I think those are relatively

3

successful.

4

saw before, and I just think it's an effective

5

way of fitting into the -- and that's not the

6

only way, but it's an effective way of fitting

7

into the context of multi-story buildings in

8

Brookline.

9

They're an improvement on what we

One of the questions I have about it,

10

though, gets me to a related question about

11

color and materials -- and this is kind of like

12

the issue I was raising with Cliff when I was

13

asking about the Kenwood end that has, you know,

14

one material on the left side and another

15

material on the right side.

16

That's a vertical seam in the

17

building, and I think one of the other -- there's

18

a horizontal one that has been introduced on the

19

Harvard Street elevation that wasn't there

20

before at the top of the arcade and below the

21

four-story mass of the brick.

22

that it looks like a discontinuity in the

23

architectural drawing I think is because the

24

arcade is shown in light-colored materials, and
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it was never light before.

2

materials, reddish or brownish or grayish in the

3

earlier versions of the design.

4

There were darker

To me, what isn't working right now,

5

and I'm confident that there are ways through

6

this, is that you have this fairly traditionally

7

articulated four-story massive brick with bays

8

in it, which is kind of a load bearing

9

articulation of building mass, and it's sitting

10

on this relatively thin, light-colored material.

11

It looks like it's floating, and I don't know if

12

that's what you intend.

13

is a good fit for the built environment of

14

Brookline the way that bays, to me, are kind of a

15

good fit.

16

I don't think floating

So I just question the color and the

17

-- it's really just the color of the material.

18

wonder whether they -- if the light color were

19

only at the top or were not used at that arcade

20

whether the big anchoring mass of the brick

21

building on Harvard Street would just sort of

22

stand better on Harvard Street and not float

23

around.

24

I

I'm not going to go over it again, my
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question to Cliff about the split Kenwood

2

elevation, except to say that I hope more can be

3

done there to resolve it.

4

Kenwood neighbor's side, I think overall, the

5

wall of bays is a pretty good adaptation.

6

know, it does give you a building that -- it

7

lacks a little integrity as a whole building

8

because it just looks completely different on

9

one side from the other, but on balance --

Coming around to the

You

10

I'm not sure -- I'm just not going to

11

object to it, but I'm going to come back to mass

12

on that side.

13

Kenwood context with the lower and separated

14

buildings, that would really help, in my

15

opinion, and others have mentioned it, is to not

16

have the six stories, you know, partial six

17

stories or five and six stories set back quite a

18

bit more.

19

I think the one adaptation to the

I know that you're up against the

20

layout of, you know, workable sizes of units,

21

but on what I think is the main concern for me is

22

where the mass of the building is.

23

that's the only piece of it that feels like it's

24

in the wrong place.
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And just one language thing to end

2

with.

I did appreciate the survey of setbacks

3

along the Harvard Street sidewalk, but it was

4

odd after that to have the building presented as

5

having a six-foot setback on the Harvard Street.

6

I think the design -- on the Harvard Street side.

7

I think the design is what it is, but I think

8

that an arcade is an arcade, and especially with

9

the mass of the building.

10

It started right at the top of the

11

arcade column, going up in a straight wall.

12

There is no setback.

13

That's okay.

14

sooner see, you know, the mass there and, you

15

know, kind of managed away in pieces on the other

16

sides.

That's what the design is.

I would

And I will pause there for now.

17
18

It's a zero-foot setback.

MR. GELLER:

Thank you, Randolph.

Kate.

19

MS. POVERMAN:

I concur with a lot of

20

Randolph's comments.

21

what he said, I think there can be more

22

articulation on the Kenwood side of the

23

building.

24

industrial.
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1

-- the gray color blended in more.

2

too stark, and that if it approached the same

3

color as the rest of the building, it would flow

4

more easily.

5

I like the arcade.

I think it is

I think it's nice

6

to have that accessibility feature so prominent

7

for people who are differently abled.

8

with Cliff that the setback of the arcade should

9

be increased -- the depth should be increased.

I agree

10

also think that the bays are a good development.

11

I don't know if something like that is possible

12

on the Kenwood side to create more articulation

13

or not.

14

I

You know, Covid has changed a lot, and

15

it's hard to know what is coming down the pike.

16

And I know that the retail space at your project

17

on the other side of Harvard Street has not

18

rented, but in terms of the height of the

19

building, the other project is 17 units, but I

20

think it's -- I don't know if it's financial

21

liability dependent on the income from the

22

retail portion, but that project was reduced

23

significantly from its original, which makes me

24

wonder if the six stories can be reduced to five.
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1

I think at the very least, Cliff's suggestion

2

that the setback of those floors be moved back

3

should be heeded.

4
5

Those are my comments.

MR. GELLER:

Thank you, Kate.

Johanna.

6

MS. SCHNEIDER:

I mean, I think we're

7

starting with a fundamental struggle here,

8

right, which is that this is a really tiny site,

9

and the developer is trying to cram ten pounds of

10

apples into a five-pound bag, and it is not that

11

-- I don't necessarily have an objection to

12

height, and I don't have an objection to the

13

number of units.

14

Those things in and of themselves

15

don't bother me if it can be executed

16

effectively.

17

moves that the developer has made and that John

18

Harding showed tonight are moves in the right

19

direction.

20

like we went through a very long period of time

21

with this project of, you know, making

22

suggestions to the developer of things we wanted

23

to see to make this more consistent with the

24

neighborhood and more respectful of the
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neighborhood context.

2

I feel like initially those requests

3

and that feedback really fell on deaf ears.

It

4

does feel like there is movement in the right

5

direction here.

6

quite working, and I don't know -- you know, so

7

long as the developer maintains that they're

8

unable to, you know, reduce the volume of the

9

building or reduce the unit count further, and

Unfortunately, it's still not

10

they have to stay at six, I don't know if there

11

are design solutions to this issue, but I think

12

it's worth exploring.

13

And I'll just raise a couple of

14

specific things.

15

about wanting to see some sort of stepback on the

16

upper floors, particularly, you know, on the

17

Kenwood side, I completely agree with that.

18

just feels very bulky and very close to a much

19

smaller scaled residential neighborhood, and I

20

think that's the biggest issue.

21

I mean, I think Cliff's point

You know, I agree with Randolph.

It

The

22

colonnade, the arcade, whatever you want to call

23

it, it feels illusory to me.

24

setback, right.
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has a zero-foot setback from Harvard, and I

2

think we should just acknowledge it, and, you

3

know, the colonnade arcade is not helping with

4

that, in particular because it is only one

5

story, and then you've got this very -- you've

6

got a lot of mass right there right on top of it,

7

and it's very sort of skinny and not very deep.

8

And, you know, I said this before, I

9

think it really detracts from the residential

10

appearance of this building.

11

office like.

12

does not want to do retail in those spaces, I

13

don't feel like -- it doesn't feel appropriate,

14

and it doesn't feel right to me.

15

intent is is to try to shift mass back from the

16

Harvard sidewalk, it's not doing it, and so I --

17

you know, and I --

18

It still feels

And particularly, if the developer

And if what the

You know, I do a lot of multi-family

19

development in my daily job.

20

making arguments about what we're supposed to do

21

with common areas in a post-Covid environment.

22

I really didn't buy any of the arguments about

23

people need a private gym to share with 25 people

24

or a co-working space to share with 25 people
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1

because it's safer than going to their

2

neighborhood gym.

3

opportunity to revisit what the programming of

4

that space could be to see if there's an

5

opportunity to shift residential units to the

6

ground floor, and then free up some other space

7

within the building in order to provide some

8

relief with respect to the height and the

9

massing.

10

So I think maybe there's an

I did raise previously, you know, a

11

question about the blank wall in the corner

12

between Harvard and Kenwood.

13

something that ought to be addressed.

14

think that the view from TJ Maxx that we saw in

15

the presentation, which is very similar from the

16

aerial view, shows a lot of blank walls.

17

I think that's
I also

I understand that there was a desire

18

to respect the fact that there are windows on the

19

existing building at I think 514.

20

raised the possibility of there being at least

21

blind window openings or some other kind of

22

detail so that when people are looking at this

23

from, you know, that TJ Maxx view, it doesn't

24

look like a big unfinished blank wall.
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You know, to have that kind of sort of

2

nothingness, you know, again, is really out of

3

character with the neighborhood, and I think,

4

you know, that might help with the -- and I think

5

a couple of people have raised the concern that

6

right now, there are some elements of the

7

building that are working like the maze, but I

8

think it still looks like at this point three

9

separate buildings kind of stuck together.

10

And some of that is the architecture,

11

some of that is the color of the materials, which

12

is an easy fix, but some of it also is, you know,

13

you've got these expanses of blankness, and then

14

you've got, you know, these sort of nice

15

consistent patterns.

16

bring that around the entirety of the building.

17

And I feel like we need to

The last thing I would say, and maybe

18

this is achieved architecturally, maybe this is

19

achieved through a green wall or something

20

similar, but, you know, I think there needs to be

21

some attention paid to the relationship at the

22

ground level of this building, and I guess it's

23

the garage wall on the Kenwood side.

24

needs to be buffered or screened or greened in
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some way so that the neighbors are not looking at

2

a blank garage wall at the ground plane.

3

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

My comments

4

are going to be actually fairly brief, but I

5

think they will be similar to what's already

6

been relayed by any number of the panel that came

7

before me.

8
9

Let me start by saying I do think this
iteration is an improvement.

I think the bays

10

largely contribute to that.

11

not focus on the aesthetics of the building.

12

think there are fundamentally more important

13

issues.

14

My comments will
I

Although I agree that the arcade on

15

Harvard Street is illusory, it is a zero-setback

16

building.

17

arcade that is buffered off from the public, and

18

then the building simply proceeds straight up.

19

So there really is no setback on that facade.

20

You're essentially setting up an

I suppose I am fine with that,

21

because, as I've said a couple of times, to me,

22

the overall issue is the total massing, and

23

that's made up of a number of component.

24

while I think that the bays are helpful, I in
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1

particular -- I am less focused on the Harvard

2

Street side, though I share the comment about

3

the lack of setback where there once was one, so

4

that the contrast between the residential

5

structure to the north and this building is

6

exacerbated.

7

It's frankly far more stark.

My real focus is on Kenwood Street and

8

where this building meets the neighbor.

One, I

9

want to acknowledge that some effort has been

10

made, particularly with the bay and in

11

particular with the bays to the rear of the

12

building, to at least break it up in some

13

fashion.

14

is a small, shallow lot that is being asked to

15

sustain an extremely large, tall building.

16

But again, as I've noted before, this

We saw as an example 420 Harvard

17

Street, and we -- and I think it was presented as

18

an example of zero setback on the ground level.

19

But 420 Harvard Street has a significant setback

20

above the first floor, and it has -- it angles as

21

it reaches back to the residential neighborhood.

22

Efforts were made in that case, significant

23

efforts, to reduce the mass as it impacts a

24

different, less commercial neighborhood.
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1

what I have asked for.

2

for in this instance.

3

That's what I would ask

I would like to see what this building

4

looks like -- and I'm not concerned about

5

aesthetics right now, but I'd like to see what

6

this building looks like with a reduction in the

7

mass along Kenwood Street to the rear of the

8

building at that corner where it meets the

9

residential neighborhood.

10

To me, that is a

critical issue.

11

This building is impactful of that

12

neighborhood.

This is a one- and two-family

13

neighborhood.

Some accommodation above and

14

beyond what has been made needs to be made, in my

15

opinion, and I would ask the developer to make

16

that accommodation.

17

I think there are ways that you can

18

play with your program to do that.

19

suggestions have been made.

20

architect who can help you, and I suspect that

21

you, too, as developers have thought about this

22

for quite a while, and I would ask you to spend a

23

little more time on that.

24

comments and thoughts.
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do, I give the applicant an opportunity to

2

respond to testimony at the hearing, and also

3

respond to the comments from the panel.

4

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

Thank you.

All

5

of the comments from the panel are very clear.

6

We will do what we always do, regroup and take it

7

to heart and see what we can do to accommodate

8

those requests.

9

Danny or David, if they have anything to say?

10

Let me just ask my clients,

MR. DAVID DANESH:

Yeah, actually, I

11

have some -- I have a couple of things I'd like

12

to say.

13

evening.

14

is --

Thank you everyone for your time this
One of the things I'd like to say that

15

MR. GELLER:

Introduce yourself first.

16

MR. DANESH:

I'm David Danesh.

I'm

17

one of the partners of the development.

18

the things I'd like to mention is that I know a

19

lot of the neighbors.

20

still watching and listening, but I really

21

appreciate them reaching out, especially the

22

ones that were a supporter of the project.

23
24

One of

I don't know if they're

The retail component of the building
was not our recommendation to be removed.
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would love to have a retail component in the

2

building.

3

town, not from the ownership.

4

neighbors who are upset at that, that's not -- we

5

originally designed the building for a retail

6

component.

7

diagonal from this, 455, has an empty storefront

8

that was due to the Covid-19, that still didn't

9

sway us from doing that.

10

That was the recommendation from the
So all the

And even though the building that's

We always wanted to have a retail

11

component in there, because Harvard Street is a

12

lively street with restaurants and shops and so

13

on and so forth.

14

of the town, not the developer.

15

make that clear, because I think that got mixed

16

up a couple times throughout the conversation we

17

had.

18

clear up, and that's pretty much it.

19

very much.

But that was the recommendation
I just want to

So that was my main thing that I'd like to

20

MR. GELLER:

21

MS. MORELLI:

Thank you

Thank you.
Can I just, Mr. Geller

22

-- Mr. Danesh, when you say the town, are you

23

referring to the board?

24

MR. DANESH:
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you and Cliff's recommendations.

2

recommendation to remove the -- it wasn't our

3

idea to remove the retail.

4

MS. MORELLI:

Not our

So let me just make it

5

clear, not to argue, we don't have jurisdiction

6

over the programming, and neither does the

7

board.

8

recounting what happened in the hearing where we

9

were talking in a working group.

There was a discussion -- I was

It was

10

suggested -- I think Ms. Schneider had suggested

11

-- excuse me, David.

12

suggested if the retail were removed, if that

13

could be a possible way to put massing -- units

14

from the sixth floor into that space.

15

talking about ways to move units around, and we

16

didn't tell you.

17
misspoke.

19

or suggested.

20

Okay.

You didn't tell me.

MS. MORELLI:

I might have
You recommended

We threw out a lot of

ideas to reduce massing on the sixth floor.

22
23

We were

We can't tell you.

MR. DANESH:

18

21

Ms. Schneider had

MR. DANESH:

I understand that.

So

back to -- I'm going to say it again.

24

MS. MORELLI:
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parking, was there any way you could put

2

residential on the first floor.

3

MR. DANESH:

I'm just going to repeat

4

myself all over again, because I might have

5

misspoken by saying that you told us.

6

suggested -- you and Cliff suggested and

7

recommended to remove the retail component.

8

wasn't our idea.

9

MS. MORELLI:

You

It

One of the board members

10

had suggested it as -- it wasn't prescriptive,

11

and we have a transcript, and we were just

12

recounting that.

13

retail space didn't get filled in with

14

residential.

15

the sixth floor.

16

But keep in mind that that

So there wasn't anything lost on

MR. DANESH:

And I'm not -- all I'm

17

saying -- making clear that the idea of removing

18

the retail did not come from us.

19

saying.

That's all I'm

I don't want -- I don't know --

20

MS. MORELLI:

21

want to argue with you.

22

over the programming.

23

the number of the size bedrooms to this.

24

can't -- we don't have jurisdiction over the
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programming.

2

because you felt that it was difficult to lease

3

retail.

You wouldn't have done it --

4
5

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:
accurate.

6
7

No, that's not

That is not accurate at all.
MR. GELLER:

One at a time, one at a

time.

8
9

You decided to remove the retail

MR. DANNY DANESH:
one thing.

I just want to say

This is Danny Danesh from the

10

development team.

11

not have retail space when we are charged -- one

12

of the main charges that we were given was to

13

have a setback at the ground floor.

14

have a setback on the ground floor, then we need

15

to have an elevator, and we need to have a core

16

of the building, and there's no possibility to

17

have retail.

18

retail on the second floor, and there's not

19

going to be retail on Kenwood, so there's

20

nowhere else to put it.

21

to remove the retail.

22

We had no choice, I mean, to

So if you

So, I mean, there's not going to be

MS. MORELLI:

So we have no choice but

So we talked about

23

having a zero setback.

24

Harvard Street where there was zero setback at

1-800-727-6396

We looked at massing on

Veritext Legal Solutions

www.veritext.com

Page 158
1

the ground floor, and we did say if you had zero

2

-- if you filled that in at the ground floor, you

3

would have -- you would need to think about

4

reducing the massing on the upper floors,

5

because remember, this was an exercise about the

6

massing, not about setback.

7

Cliff and I actually said it was hard

8

to justify a ten-foot front yard setback, but if

9

you're -- but we don't have six-foot buildings

10

with zero setbacks on Harvard, so you really

11

would have to do some articulation at the fourth

12

story just to -- if you wanted to keep -- if you

13

wanted to be consistent with the development

14

pattern on Harvard with a zero front yard

15

setback.

16
17

MR. DAVID DANESH:

I understand that,

but I --

18

MS. MORELLI:

19

we're not prescriptive.

20

MR. DANESH:

So just keep in mind

I'm not saying that you

21

are, but from my understanding and my architect

22

and my attorney and my partner, we remember

23

things a little bit differently than that.

24

one said that it was -- it didn't make economic
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sense.

There was no conversation regarding

2

that.

3

made to us, and we followed through with it,

4

similar to all the other recommendations that

5

you've -- that you and Cliff have asked us to do

6

that we followed, as well.

It was a recommendation that you and Cliff

7

So I just want to put that on the

8

record that it wasn't -- and the neighbors were

9

for this project -- that we didn't remove the

10

retail because, a, we didn't -- because of

11

Covid, or, b, because it wasn't economically

12

feasible or any of that.

13

happened.

14
15

That's not what

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

We're going to

look at it again, Maria.

16

MS. MORELLI:

That's fine, David, but

17

as long as you understand, David, that I was

18

never really okay with an arcade either.

19

can't just cherry pick what we -- we threw a lot

20

of ideas on the table because we want to explore

21

-- design is iterative.

22

prescriptive here.

23
24

We're not being

MR. DANNY DANESH:
Danesh speaking.
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that, you know, we've been pushed in many

2

different directions from the board here, and

3

we've delivered -- we've listened, we've

4

delivered, and I think we're getting to the end

5

of this where it's just -- you know, with all due

6

respect to Cliff, we have a meeting with him,

7

and, you know, you were there Maria, we

8

discussed all -- you know, he tells us how he's

9

satisfied with the Harvard side of the building,

10

and then we have a hearing, and it's a different

11

story.

12

So the working sessions, we were

13

spending a lot of time on.

14

I feel like we're spending a lot of time, we're

15

delivering, we're getting pushed in different

16

directions, and then we come to the hearing, and

17

there's a whole new set of objectives that we

18

have to meet.

19

need to reach the end here.

20

this for over a year.

21

We have -- you know,

So it just -- we need some -- we

MR. GELLER:

We've been doing

I'm going to say one

22

thing, and then I think all parties have

23

exhausted this topic.

24

message that has been communicated by the ZBA
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and the three charges that we've given has been

2

inconsistent.

3

specific, as specific as the ZBA can be, given

4

that we don't design your project.

5

each time we've given those charges, we've been

6

clear about the priorities and the issues of

7

local concern that the board feels are

8

paramount.

9

and all of these things is difficult, but I don't

I think it's been clear,

But I think

And I recognize that addressing some

10

think the board has been inconsistent in its

11

communication.

12

Now, I can't say what's been going on

13

in the meetings, but I suspect that the meetings

14

have also been consistent with the board's

15

charge.

16

at those things that the board has consistently

17

spoken about, which is the massing of this

18

structure, and let us know what it is you can

19

achieve to bring it more into alignment.

20

clear?

21

at the last hearing.

So I would urge you to look, once again,

I feel like I said the exact same thing

22

MR. DANESH:

23

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

24

that's clear.
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times where the board completely disregarded

2

peer reviewer's advice, which we were relying

3

on, but now we know.

4

the remaining issues that we need to look at.

5

We're going to look at them.

6

back to you at the next hearing and address every

7

one of them, whether we can meet them, if we

8

can't, why we can't, very specific.

9

We've heard loud and clear

MR. GELLER:

Very good, very good.

10

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

11

MR. GELLER:

Thank you.

That's what we would ask.

12

Does anybody have questions?

13

ask.

14

details?

Comments?

We're going to come

Now is the time to

Maria, any administrative

15

MS. MORELLI:

16

MR. GELLER:

17

MS. MORELLI:

No.
Do we have a next date?
I would just ask the

18

applicant to think about -- we'd like to have --

19

we're going to need a working group or two, so I

20

don't think that we really can meet before four

21

weeks, and I would just like to know if you plan

22

to do more work on the design?

23

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

24

We're going to

have a meeting tomorrow, Maria, and I'll let you
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know.

2
3

MS. MORELLI:

We have to continue to a

date, though, so shall we --

4

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

5

MS. MORELLI:

6

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

MR. GELLER:

Only if you tell me when

three weeks is.

11

MS. MORELLI:

I just have to make sure

12

I don't have another ZBA.

13

??:

14

MR. GELLER:

15

March 10?
Is that what you're

talking about?

16
17

I think three

weeks is sufficient.

9
10

Do you want to -- three

weeks from now?

7
8

Yeah, sure.

MS. MORELLI:

That looks to be okay.

March 10.

18

MR. GELLER:

March 10.

So our next

19

hearing in this comprehensive permit application

20

will be -- this hearing is being continued until

21

March 10, 7:00 p.m.

22

their patience throughout this evening.

23

to thank the developer for their recent

24

iteration.
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1

good questions.

2

to thank you.

And Maria, most of all, I want

3

MS. MORELLI:

4

MR. GELLER:

Goodnight everybody.

5

MR. DANESH:

Thank you.

6

MS. DOPAZO-GILBERT:

7

You're welcome.

Thank you all.

Goodnight.

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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1

C E R T I F I C A T E

2

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

3

NORFOLK, ss.

4
5

I, ARLENE R. BOYER, a Certified Court

6

Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

7

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby

8

certify:

9

That the proceedings herein was recorded by

10

me and transcribed by me; and that such

11

transcript is a true record of the proceedings,

12

to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

13
14

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand
and notarial seal this 3rd day of March 2021.

15
16
17

<%21414,Signature%>

18

Arlene R. Boyer, CVR

19

Notary Public

20

My Commission Expires

21

November 21, 2025

22
23
24
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